
Multiple files are bound together in this PDF Package.

Adobe recommends using Adobe Reader or Adobe Acrobat version 8 or later to work with 
documents contained within a PDF Package. By updating to the latest version, you’ll enjoy 
the following benefits:  

•  Efficient, integrated PDF viewing 

•  Easy printing 

•  Quick searches 

Don’t have the latest version of Adobe Reader?  

Click here to download the latest version of Adobe Reader

If you already have Adobe Reader 8, 
click a file in this PDF Package to view it.

http://www.adobe.com/products/acrobat/readstep2.html




MinutesMinutesMinutesMinutes
Board of Commissioners


February 12, 2015
 7:00 P.M.


The Board of Commissioners of Fayette County, Georgia, met in Official Session on February 12, 2015 at 7:00 p.m. in
the Public Meeting Room of the Fayette County Administrative Complex, 140 Stonewall Avenue, Fayetteville, Georgia.


Commissioners Present: Charles Oddo, Chairman
Pota Coston, Vice Chair
David Barlow
Steve Brown
Randy Ognio


Staff Present: Steve Rapson, County Administrator
Floyd L. Jones, County Clerk
Tameca P. White, Chief Deputy Clerk 
Dennis Davenport, County Attorney


_______________________________________________________________________________________________


Call to Order


Chairman Oddo called the February 12, 2015 Board of Commissioners meeting to order at 7:02 p.m.
 
Invocation by Chairman Oddo


Chairman Oddo introduced Elder-Candidate David Patton of Gospel Community Church and asked him to offer the
Invocation.  Mr. Patton offered the Invocation.


Pledge of Allegiance


Commissioner Coston led the audience in the Pledge of Allegiance.


Acceptance of Agenda


Commissioner Brown moved to accept the Agenda. Commissioner Barlow seconded the motion.  No discussion
followed.  The motion passed unanimously.



fjones

Typewritten Text

Consent Agenda #7







Minutes
February 12, 2015
Page Number 2


PROCLAMATION /RECOGNITION:


1. Proclamation honoring the 100th anniversary of Kiwanis International.


Chairman Oddo asked for the members in the audience who are members of Kiwanis International to come
to the front of the room to be recognized.  Chairman Oddo then read a proclamation honoring the 100th


anniversary of Kiwanis International.  Ms. Carolyn Cary accepted the proclamation on behalf of the Kiwanis
members in attendance, and she spoke about the work of Kiwanis International throughout the years. 
Copies of the request and proclamation, identified as “Attachment 1,” follow these minutes and are made an
official part hereof.


PUBLIC HEARING:


There were no Public Hearing items on the Agenda for consideration.


CONSENT AGENDA:


Commissioner Brown asked for items 3, 4 and 5 to be removed from the Consent Agenda.


Commissioner Ognio moved to approve Consent Agenda Items 2, 6, and 7.  Commissioner Barlow seconded the
motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion passed unanimously.


2. Approval of the appointment of Dennis Davenport as Attorney to the Fayette County Board of
Commissioners for the 2015 calendar year.


3. Approval of staff's request to award Bid #928B- Historic Courthouse Roofing Project to Skyline
Construction Services Inc., including a Base Bid in the amount of $189,715.00 and an Alternate in
the amount of $4,800.00, in an aggregate amount not to exceed $194,515.00, and authorization for
the County Administrator to sign the contract and any associated documents.


Commissioner Brown asked why this item was on the Consent Agenda.  County Administrator Steve
Rapson replied that it was a signature project.  He explained that this request was for significant repair to
the Historic County Courthouse and that he has the authority to approve the repairs, but he wanted this
item on the Agenda to highlight its significance.  Discussion followed.


Commissioner Brown moved to approve Consent Agenda Item 3.  Commissioners Coston and Ognio
seconded the motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion passed unanimously.  A copy of the request,
identified as “Attachment 2,” follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


4. Approval of staff's request to adopt Ordinance 2015-02, enacting provisions pertaining to the
Multifamily Residential Sprinkler Code by designating Sections 12-139 through 12-149 of Article V of
Chapter 12 as "Reserved," and by creating a new Article VI, pertaining to "Multifamily Residential
Sprinkler Code," in Chapter 12.


Commissioner Brown pointed out that this request was pertaining to Ordinance 2015-02 and that there had
been discussion between some of the Commissioners and the County Administrator about how this type of
item should not be on a Consent Agenda but rather listed as either Old Business or New Business.  County







Minutes
February 12, 2015
Page Number 3


Administrator Steve Rapson confirmed there had been conversations with Commissioner Ognio and that
ordinances would no longer be placed on the Consent Agenda.  Commissioner Brown replied that he
removed this item from Consent Agenda since he did not believe it needed to be on the Consent Agenda.


Commissioner Brown moved to approve Ordinance 2015-02 as written.  Commissioner Barlow seconded
the motion.  The motion passed unanimously.  Copies of the request and Ordinance 2015-02, identified as
“Attachment 3,” follow these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


5. Approval of the Water Committee's recommendation to approve funding, in the amount of
$1,300,000.00, for the State Route 54 East waterline relocation due to the Department of
Transportation's road widening project.


Commissioner Brown pointed out that he had provided the following documents to the Commissioners at
the dais: (a) ASTRoMaP- Atlanta Strategic Truck Route Master Plan- ARC Appendices A-F; (b) Atlanta
Region Plan 2040- Technical Assistance Implementation Strategy Report- January 2010; ( c) The Politics of
Mobility and Business Elites in Atlanta, Georgia by Jason Henderson; (d) Northern Arc by another name:


Public process begins for widening of Ga. 20 from Canton to Cumming by David Pendered; and (e) the
September 26, 2013 Board of Commissioners Meeting Minutes with emphasis on a related topic beginning
on page eight.  


Commissioner Brown expressed several concerns about the Water Committee’s recommendation to
approve funding in the amount of $1,300,000.00.  He explained that this request was tied into a larger
initiative from the Georgia Department of Transportation (GDOT) and the Atlanta Regional Commission
(ARC) that would essentially revisit in order to create an outer loop around metro-Atlanta.  Commissioner
Brown explained where the southern loop, or arc, would come through Fayette County, and he mentioned
that the work had already begun for the creation of the northern loop, or arc, in the northern metropolitan
Atlanta counties.  He stated that the outer loop would be incredibly detrimental to Fayette County, its rural
atmosphere, and its residents since it would directly impact the center of Fayette County.  Commissioner
Brown stressed that this effort by GDOT would not reduce traffic congestion but would only provide the
means to increase additional traffic through Fayette County since “volume always meets capacity.”  He
explained that if the capacity of State Route 54 was increased then the volume of traffic would also
increase.  Commissioner Brown expressed concerns about the impact the widening project would have on
McCurry Park, the Public Works and Road Departments, and Fayette County’s Water Systems building. 
He pointed out that the current plan would force large trucks pulling heavy equipment to make a right-hand
turn out of the Public Works facility only to find a place to turn around, causing even more traffic.  He
reminded the Board that his concerns were addressed with GDOT officials during the Fayette County Board
of Commissioners’ meeting on September 26, 2013, but that GDOT had not responded or replied to the
Board of Commissioners’ concerns.  Commissioner Brown explained that he would not support this request
based on the concerns he expressed.  He concluded that the County did not need to be interested in this
project, that the project does not work toward the benefit of Fayette County or its citizens, and that it has no
current impact on congestion in Fayette County.  


Chairman Oddo and County Administrator Steve Rapson pointed out that the current request was not to
approve the widening project since the project was a state project along State Route 54.  They explained
that this request was to hold the $1,300,000.00 in reserve, in order to move the waterlines when the state
highway is widened. 







Minutes
February 12, 2015
Page Number 4


Commissioner Ognio thought it would be wise to not approve the request since, by not giving the approval;
Fayette County would retain leverage with GDOT until the concerns were adequately addressed.


Mr. Rapson stated that the request was not to approve a contract in order to move the project forward, but it
was only to set funding aside for the GDOT project in order to participate in better economy of scale and
pricing.  Mr. Rapson explained that if the Board did not set aside the funds then the County would not be
included in GDOT’s efforts with vendors in order to get better pricing.


County Attorney Dennis Davenport stated that the issue was that the County’s utilities are in the state’s
right-of-way, and that the likely condition was that if the road was ever to be widened then the County would
have to move its utilities.  He explained that the requested $1,300,000.00 was not to fund the road widening
project, but was requested to be set aside in order to move the County’s utilities out of the right-of-way. 
Discussion followed.


Commissioner Barlow moved to approve the Water Committee’s recommendation to approve funding, in
the amount of $1,300,000.00, for the State Route 54 East waterline relocation due to the Department of
Transportation’s road widening project.  Commissioner Coston seconded the motion.  No discussion
followed.  The motion passed 3-2 with Commissioners Brown and Ognio voting in opposition to the motion. 
Copies of the request specified dais documents, identified as “Attachment 4,” follow these minutes and are
made an official part hereof.


6. Approval of the County Clerk's request to adopt the revised 2015 County Commissioners Meeting
Schedule.  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 5,” follows these minutes and is made
an official part hereof.


7. Approval of the January 22, 2015 Board of Commissioners Meeting Minutes.


OLD BUSINESS:


There were no Old Business items on the Agenda for consideration.


NEW BUSINESS:


There were no New Business items on the Agenda for consideration.


PUBLIC COMMENT:


Darwin Edwards: Mr. Edwards asked if the County had $1,300,000.00 to set aside for the widening of State Route
54 and who would benefit from its approval.  Mr. Edwards was informed that his question would be answered later
during the meeting.


Alice Jones: Mrs. Alice Jones reminded the Board of several appeals that she has made to former Commissioner
groups over the years, and that one major appeal was to continue improving Kenwood Park.  She said she was
concerned that the efforts and vision to move Fayette County forward does not appear to be evident.  She asked the
Board to provide a multipurpose recreation park in Kenwood Park.  She asked the Board to meet with Mr. Rapson to
consider providing a multipurpose park in either Kenwood Park or some other park in Fayette County.  She stated







Minutes
February 12, 2015
Page Number 5


that she would rather see money spent to provide a multipurpose recreational park than to see the money spent on
fighting against district voting.  Mrs. Jones said she read several articles about moving Fayette County forward in
regards to district voting, and she asked the Board to revisit the issue and to drop the appeal on district voting.


Dennis Benson: Mr. Benson spoke in favor of the continuation of the district voting lawsuit with the National
Association for the Advancement of Colored People (NAACP).  He thought the easy road would be to drop the
appeal, but in doing so it would agree with the insulting message the lawsuit states about the Board of
Commissioners and the citizens of Fayette County.  He reported that if voter turnout is low then candidates will not
win. Mr. Benson then asked a series of rhetorical questions about if their campaigns for elections incorporated either
subtle or overt racial appeals.  He then spoke about the relatively low cost to defend the County in the district voting
lawsuit.  He repeated that the Board should continue with the district voting lawsuit in order to defend the character
of the Board of Commissioners and the character of Fayette County’s citizens.  He also asked the NAACP to
withdraw the spurious attacks that it has made against the citizens of Fayette County.


Michael Arnold: Mr. Arnold thanked the Board for unanimously passing Resolution 2014-19 requesting the Georgia
General Assembly to drop the petition requirement in regards to asking citizens if they want fluoride added to their
drinking water. He said he was impressed with how Resolution 2014-19 was written.  He said his mission to remove
fluoride from public drinking water shifted gears after a bill was introduced into the Georgia General Assembly
based, in large part, by the resolution.  Mr. Arnold then spoke about the detrimental effects caused by ingesting
fluoride, and he spoke of the support that he is receiving for his cause throughout the Fayette community.  


Joshua Nelson: Mr. Nelson stated that he is Mr. Arnold’s friend, and he felt it was a right of the American people to
be able to vote on the issue of whether or not to continue fluoridation of the drinking water.


John E. Jones: Mr. Jones, President of the Fayette County NAACP, reflected on the Invocation saying it was
appropriate since the “Spirit is needed and the Spirit is among us.”  He spoke how there was no diversity on the
Fayette County Board of Commissioners and so, when he moved to Fayette County, he worked to change the Board
in an effort to get more diversity.  He said he was proud of what has been accomplished in Fayette County.  He
stated that if the Board of Commissioners wanted to keep litigating and spending money then they could do so, but
he stated that justice would prevail in the end.  He said he tried to do the best and right thing, and that was all he
was asking of the Board as well.  He stated that district voting levels the playing field.  He said he has proven
himself, and others who come after him need to prove themselves.  He concluded his remarks by reminding the
Board that district voting has prevailed in all the surrounding counties and in many counties in Georgia.


ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORTS:


Planning Commission and the Zoning Board of Appeals: County Administrator Steve Rapson reported that there
was one vacancy on both the Planning Commission and the Zoning Board of Appeals and that a Selection
Committee needed to be appointed in order to fill the vacancy.  Chairman Oddo asked Commissioners Ognio and
Barlow to handle the Planning Commission and the Zoning Board of Appeals vacancy interviews.  He also asked for
Community Development Director Pete Frisina to participate in the interviews with Commissioners Barlow and
Ognio.  Commissioners Barlow and Ognio agreed to serve on the Selection Committee and Mr. Rapson replied he
would ask Mr. Frisina to also serve in the interview process.


Recreation Commission- Post 3: Chairman Oddo asked Commissioner Brown and Commissioner Coston to
participate on the Selection Commission for the Recreation Commission-Post 3 vacancy.  Discussion followed on
this matter and how a selection would be made for the vacancy.







Minutes
February 12, 2015
Page Number 6


Commissioner Brown moved to table the discussion of appointments to be resumed no later than April 3, 2015. 
Commissioner Barlow seconded the motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion to table passed unanimously.


Mr. Rapson advised the Board he would have Recreation Director Anita Godbee begin the process of reviewing and
recommending changes to the Recreation Commission’s bylaws and that the matter would be discussed at the
Board of Commissioner’s Retreat to be held on April 3, 2015.


Ethics Board: Chairman Oddo asked Commissioners Coston and Commissioner Barlow to do the interviews for the
Ethics Board.  Commissioners Barlow and Coston agreed to serve on the Ethics Board.


Regional Six Mental Health Board: County Administrator Steve Rapson stated that there was a vacancy on the
Regional Six Mental Health Board.  Chairman Oddo asked Commissioners Coston and Barlow to serve on the
Selection Committee to fill the vacancy.  Commissioners Barlow and Coston agreed to serve on the Selection
Committee.


Georgia Military College Waterline Extension Contract: County Administrator advised the Board that the County
has received a fully-executed contract from the Georgia Military College for waterline extension.


February 26, 2015 Board of Commissioner’s Meeting Time Changed: County Administrator Steve Rapson
notified the Board that the February 26, 2015 Board of Commissioners meeting time had changed from 7:00 p.m. to
4:00 p.m. in order to accommodate the AVPride event that would be held on the same day at 6:30 p.m.


Response to Public Comment: County Administrator Steve Rapson replied to Mr. Edward’s question by saying no
one really benefits since what was done was only a reservation of funds for the future widening project.  He stated
that the work of relocating waterlines would come to the Board of Commissioners at a future date probably within the
next 90 to 120 days.  Mr. Rapson replied to Mrs. Jones’ comments stating there is a meeting scheduled with
Commissioner Coston and that this item would be considered during that meeting.  Mr. Rapson stated that House
Bill 129 was entered into the Georgia General Assembly with regard to the fluoride issue spoken of by Mr. Arnold. 
He said HB129, if passed, would allow the Board of Commissioners to adopt a resolution allowing the question to be
placed as a referendum at the next available election.


ATTORNEY’S REPORTS:


Notice of Executive Session: County Attorney Dennis Davenport notified the Board that he had three items of
Pending Litigation and review of the January 22, 2015 Executive Session Minutes for consideration in Executive
Session.


COMMISSIONERS’ REPORTS:


Commissioner Barlow: Commissioner Barlow recommended that people should read an article in Fayette Woman


that was written about “history maker” Commissioner Pota Coston.  Commissioner Barlow also read Ephesians 5:25
before he spoke about his love for his wife and how it is bolstered through his love of God.


Commissioner Brown: Commissioner Brown thanked Representative David Stover for putting the fluoride
legislation into the Georgia General Assembly.  He responded to Mr. Edward’s comments saying the widening of
State Route 54 has nothing to do with citizens of Fayette County.  Commissioner Brown stated that Mrs. Jones
needed to remember that Fayette County and the nation entered into an economic recession that had a negative







Minutes
February 12, 2015
Page Number 7


impact to do anything.  He added that on top of the recession the Board was engaged in deficit spending.  He
agreed that the County does need to address maintenance issues.  Commissioner Brown stated that there was no
multipurpose facility being constructed in Fayette County, and he pointed out that there is no money to maintain
such a park.  Chairman Brown also spoke about the district voting lawsuit in response to Mr. Benson and Mr. Jones.


Commissioner Ognio: Commissioner Ognio reminded everyone that the Georgia General Assembly is in session
and he encouraged the people to write their representatives on the various issues such as House Bill 129 and
House Bill 170 concerning transportation.  He closed his remarks by wishing everyone a Happy Valentine’s Day.


Commissioner Coston: Commissioner Coston reported that she has had several conversations about Kenwood
Park, and that she visited Kenwood Park with Recreation Director Anita Godbee.  She stated that several low-cost
improvements were identified that can be fixed quickly, and she said she would work hard to make sure it was a park
people could be proud of.   Commissioner Coston agreed with Commissioner Ognio and also encouraged everyone
to keep up with the bills in the Georgia General Assembly while getting engaged.  She closed her remarks by
wishing everyone a Happy Valentine’s Day.


Chairman Oddo: Chairman Oddo wished everyone a Happy Valentine’s Day.  


EXECUTIVE SESSION:


Three Items of Pending Litigation and Review of the January 22, 2015 Executive Session Minutes:
Commissioner Ognio moved to recess into Executive Session.  Commissioner Barlow seconded the motion.  No
discussion followed.  The motion passed unanimously.


The Board recessed into Executive Session at 8:25 p.m. and returned to Official Session at 8:51 p.m.


Return to Official Session and Executive Session Affidavit: Commissioner Ognio moved to return to Official
Session and to authorize the Chairman to sign the Executive Session Affidavit.  Commissioner Barlow seconded the
motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion passed unanimously.  A copy of the Executive Session Affidavit,
identified as “Attachment 6,” follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


January 22, 2015 Executive Session Minutes: Commissioner Brown moved to approve the January 22, 2015
Executive Session Minutes.  Commissioner Ognio seconded the motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion
passed unanimously.


ADJOURNMENT:


Commissioner Brown moved to adjourn the February 12, 2015 Board of Commissioners meeting.  Commissioner
Ognio seconded the motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion passed unanimously.


The February 12, 2015 Board of Commissioners meeting was adjourned at 8:51 p.m.


___________________________________                               __________________________________________
        Floyd L. Jones, County Clerk                                                  Charles W. Oddo, Chairman







Minutes
February 12, 2015
Page Number 8


The foregoing minutes were duly approved at an official meeting of the Board of Commissioners of Fayette County,
Georgia, held on the 26th day of February 2015.  Referenced attachments are available upon request at the County
Clerk’s Office.


___________________________________
       Floyd L. Jones, County Clerk












AgendaAgendaAgendaAgenda
Board of Commissioners


February 26, 2015
 4:00 P.M.


Call to Order 
Invocation by Commissioner Ognio
Pledge of Allegiance


Acceptance of Agenda


PROCLAMATION /RECOGNITION:


1. Recognition of artist Pash Lima, who painted the mural at the Crosstown
Water Treatment Plant, and a special thanks to the Dolce Hotel and Resort
in Peachtree City for providing accommodations to Mr. Lima in support of
this project.


PUBLIC HEARING:


2. Public Hearing of Petition No. 1241-15, Joe Wayton, Owner, request to
rezone 6.49 acres from R-20 to A-R to develop a Farm to establish
agricultural uses, with said property being located in Land Lot 197 of the 5th
District and fronting on Neely Road. (The Applicant has requested to
withdraw the petition.)


3. Public Hearing of Petition No. RP-054-15, Joe Wayton, Owner, request to
develop a Farm to establish agricultural uses on 6.49 acres consisting of
lots 2 and 3 of Alvin Acres Subdivision, with said property being located in
Land Lot 197 of the 5th District and fronting on Neely Road. (The Applicant
has requested to withdraw the petition.)


CONSENT AGENDA:


4. Approval of a request from the Olivia Estates Subdivision's Home Owners'
Association seeking authorization for the use of motorized cart travel on all
streets within the subdivision in accordance with Article III Motorized Carts
of the Fayette County Code.


5. Approval of staff's request to award Bid #917- Fayette Senior Center
Expansion and Renovations Project to Gene Barber Contracting, Inc., for a
not-to-exceed amount of $164,852.00, and to authorize for the County
Administrator to sign the contract and any associated documents.


6. Approval of the disposition of tax refunds, in an aggregate amount of
$4,151.43, as recommended by the Tax Assessor's Office.


BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS


Charles Oddo, Chairman
Pota Coston, Vice Chair


David Barlow
Steve Brown
Randy Ognio


i


STAFF


Steve Rapson, County Manager
Dennis Davenport, County Attorney


Floyd Jones, County Clerk
Tameca P. White, Deputy County Clerk


i


MEETING LOCATION
Public Meeting Room


Administrative Complex
140 Stonewall Avenue
Fayetteville, GA 30214


i


MEETING TIMES
2nd and 4th Thursday each month 7:00 pm


i


COMMISSION OFFICE
Administrative Complex


Suite 100
140 Stonewall Avenue
Fayetteville, GA 30214
Phone: 770.305.5200


Fax: 770.305.5210


i


WEB SITE


www.fayettecountyga.gov


i


E-MAIL


administration@fayettecountyga.gov







Agenda
February 26, 2015
Page Number 2


7. Approval of the February 12, 2015 Board of Commissioners Meeting Minutes.


OLD BUSINESS:


NEW BUSINESS:


8. Consideration of the City of Fayetteville's annexation of 140 Walker Parkway and the rezoning of said
property from C-H (Highway-Commercial) to C-3 (Highway-Commercial).


9. Consideration of staff's request to award RFP #P915 - Old Jail Renovation Project to New South
Construction (General Contractor) at the Guaranteed Maximum Price of $1,545,347.00, to award a
separate contract to South Western Communications for $99,925.00 for the installation of specialized
Security Electronic Systems, and to authorize the Administrator to sign the contract and associated
documents.


10. Consideration of Ordinance 2015-03 amending the Fayette County Code of Ordinances by revising
provisions pertaining to Lake Kedron, Starr's Mill, Lake Horton and Lake McIntosh.


11. Consideration of Commissioner Brown's request to adopt Resolution 2015-03- A Resolution on
Transportation Funding Plans from the Georgia General Assembly.


PUBLIC COMMENT:


ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORTS:


ATTORNEY’S REPORTS:


COMMISSIONERS’ REPORTS:


EXECUTIVE SESSION:


ADJOURNMENT:








COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Type of Request:


Buildings and Grounds Carlos Christian, Director


Consideration of staff's request to award RFP #P915 - Old Jail Renovation Project to New South Construction (General Contractor) at the 


Guaranteed Maximum Price of $1,545,347.00, to award a separate contract to South Western Communications for $99,925.00 for the 


installation of specialized Security Electronic Systems, and to authorize the Administrator to sign the contract and associated documents.


The old Fayette County jail is a 19,715 square foot facility with seven housing units holding a total of 75 two-man cells, along with an 


internal exercise yard and central control tower.   The facility has been unoccupied for the last 14 years since the completion of the new 


jail.  This project will renovate the old jail back to operational standards in order to provide additional inmate capacity to assist in the 


greater classification of prisoners. 


 


Project work includes roof replacement and repairs, repairs to existing windows,  installation of correctional grade plumbing fixtures; 


replacement of cell door locking systems, improvements to cells, day rooms and control tower; new correctional furniture, replacement 


and repairs to the HVAC system with a smoke evacuation fans, replacement of light fittings, and adding new security control systems, 


cameras and recording facilities linked back to the existing central control room in the new jail.   A $10,000.00 allowance was included to 


connect additional circuits in the new jail to the emergency power generator.  


 


The Purchasing Department concurs with the recommendation.  If approved, New South Construction will begin work after receiving the 


Notice to Proceed and is targeting project completion by August 2015.


Consideration of staff's request to award RFP #P915 - Fayette County Old Jail Renovation Project to New South Construction (General 


Contractor) at the Guaranteed Maximum Price of $1,545,347.00, to award a separate contract to South Western Communications for 


$99,925.00 for the installation of specialized Security Electronic Systems, and to authorize the County Administrator to sign the contract 


and associated documents.


Project Funding is provided from Account #36130326-541320 5326A.


No


No Yes


Yes


Yes


Thursday, February 12, 2015 New Business



fjones

Typewritten Text

New Business #9







 
 
 
 
 
To:   
 
From:   
 
Date:   
 
 
Subject: 
 
 
A plan has
most app
K.A. Oldha
 
At the me
recomme
recomme
As part of
Guarante
Commissi
design sim
complete
design, an
 
New Sout
contract. 
Price subm
 
As mentio
connected
contractin
of reason
county’s o
obtained 
included i


Steve 


Ted L. 


Februa


RFP #9


s been develo
ropriate class
am Design, In


eeting of Dece
ndation to ap
nded New So
f their work, N
ed Maximum
oners.  This m
multaneously
d.  It allowed
nd on fine‐tun


th has obtaine
 This will incl
mitted by New


oned in the D
d to the secu
ng with South
s.  They insta
on‐going main
a quote from
in this agenda


Rapson 


Burgess 


ary 26, 2015 


915: Old Jail R


oped to refur
sification of in
nc. has provid


ember 11, 20
ppoint New S
outh from a fi
New South w
m Price to reno
method allow
.  It enabled w
 the General 
ning details o


ed competitiv
ude all constr
w South for r


ecember 11 a
rity control sy
h Western Co
lled the secu
ntenance pro


m another com
a request.  Th


Renovation –


rbish the 150‐
nmates.  Glee
ded architectu


14 the Board
outh Constru
eld of five co
as to negotia
ovate the Old
wed us to save
work on the p
Contractor to
f the Scope o


ve price quote
ruction excep
enovation (ex


agenda backu
ystem, becau
mmunication
rity system in
oviders.  To as
mpany which 
he price quote


General Cont


‐bed Old Jail, 
eds USA is pro
ural and desig


 of Commissi
uction Co., Inc
mpanies that
te with sub‐c
d Jail, subject 
e time by wor
procurement 
o be on board
of Work. 


es from sub‐c
pt for the secu
xcept the sec


up materials, 
se of its high
ns (SWC) for t
n the New Jail
ssure that SW
was much hig
ed by SWC is 


tractor and Se


in order to h
oviding projec
gn services. 


ioners approv
c. to serve as 
t responded t
contractors, a
to approval b
rking on the p
process while
d to partner w


contractors fo
urity system.
curity system)


a separate co
ly specialized
this portion o
l and the Just


WC is quoting 
gher, as expla
$99,925.00.


ecurity Syste


ave the capa
ct and cost m


ved the staff’
General Cont
to Request fo
and establish 
by the Board 
procurement 
e the design w
with the coun


or the work c
 The Guarant
) is $1,545,34


ompany will d
d nature.  Gle
of the renovat
tice Center, a
a favorable p
ained in back


m Contractor


city to assure
management, 


s 
tractor.  Staff
or Proposals #
an overall 
of 
process and 
was being 
nty on the fina


covered by th
teed Maximu
47.00. 


do work 
eds recomme
tion for a num
nd they are t
price, Gleeds 
up materials 


r 


e the 
and 


f had 
#915.  


the 


al 


eir 
um 


ends 
mber 
he 







 
If the two contracts are awarded, that will bring the complete costs of the Old Jail Renovation project to: 
 


Project & Cost Management            $95,000 
Architectural & Design Services            121,100 
Construction (Guaranteed Maximum Price)     1,545,347 
Security System Installation              99,925 
     Total Project         $1,861,372 


 
I support the recommendation to award a contract to New South Construction Co., Inc. to serve as 
General Contractor for the Guaranteed Maximum Price of $1,545,347.  I also support the 
recommendation to award a contract to SWC for security system installation for the price of $99,925. 
 
Funds for these expenditures are budgeted in Organization Code 36130326, Project 5326A. 





		Buildings and Grounds- Old Ja...ation Agenda Request File

		Buildings and Grounds- Old Jail Renovation Backup










COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Type of Request:


Buildings and Grounds Carlos Christian


Approval of staff's request to award Bid #917- Fayette Senior Center Expansion and Renovations Project to Gene Barber Contracting, 


Inc., for a not-to-exceed amount of $164,852.00, and to authorize for the County Administrator to sign the contract and any associated 


documents.


Fayette Senior Services, Inc. (FSS) is a non-profit, 501(c)(3) organization, which operates in a building owned by Fayette County.  The 


county is working with Mr. Dan Gibbs, Executive Director of Fayette Senior Services (FSS), on an expansion and renovation project.  


Renovations will be made to the existing Game Room, Lounge, Meeting Room and Vestibule areas.  The pergola area outside the 


building will be demolished, and that space used to provide approximately 770 square feet of additional space.   Fayette County provided 


funds, in the amount of $15,600.00, towards development of the Architectural Drawings for this proposed expansion and renovation 


project.  


 


The Purchasing Department issued Invitation to Bid #917 to solicit bids for the work.  A total of 31 vendors were directly notified via e-


mail.  Another 922 vendors throughout the State of Georgia were contacted through the web-based Georgia Procurement Registry.  In 


addition, invitations were extended via the Fayette News, the county website, Georgia Local Government Access Marketplace, and 


Channel 23.  Fourteen companies submitted bids by the bid-opening date of January 27, 2015 (see supporting documentation).  One 


bidder – Piedmont Geotechnical Consultants, Inc. – submitted bids only for construction materials testing and special inspection services. 


This bid was considered “non-responsive” to the solicitation for a General Contractor.  The Building and Grounds Maintenance 


Department recommends award of the contract to Gene Barber Contracting, Inc. for the not-to-exceed amount of $164,852.00. 


Approval of staff's request to award Bid #917- Fayette Senior Center Expansion and Renovations Project to Gene Barber Contracting, 


Inc., for a not-to-exceed amount of $164,852.00, and to authorize for the County Administrator to sign the contract and any associated 


documents.


Funding is provided by Fayette Senior Services, Inc. and from Account #37510565-541320 5565K.


No


No Yes


Yes


Yes


Fayette County contributed $15,600.00 towards design for the Services Expansion project, and the county will contribute  $2,464.00 to 


resolve any outstanding shortfall.  These expenditures and contributions total $18,064.00.  Given the current request and past 


expenditures and contributions, the county's total expenditure for this project will not exceed $182,916.00.


Thursday, February 26, 2015 Consent



fjones

Typewritten Text

Consent Agenda #5







 
 
 
 
To:   
 
From:   
 
Date:   
 
 
Subject: 
 
 
Fayette Se
owned by
expansion
Room and
will be ad
 
The Purch
total of 31
Georgia w
were exte
Marketpla
 
A pre‐bid 
 
Fourteen 
attachme
construct
the procu
 
Gene Barb
complete 
 
 
 
 
 


Steve 


Ted L. 


Februa


Invitat


enior Services
y Fayette Cou
n and renovat
d Vestibule ar
ded where th


hasing Depart
1 vendors we
were contacte
ended via the
ace (www.glg


conference w


companies su
nt).  One bidd
ion materials
urement proce


ber Contracti
renovations 


Rapson 


Burgess 


ary 26, 2015 


tion to Bid #9


s, Inc. (FSS) is
nty.  The cou
tion project.  
reas.  The per
he pergola ha


tment issued 
ere directly no
ed through th
 Fayette New
ga.org), and C


was held on Ja


ubmitted bid
der – Piedmo
s testing and s
ess, “non‐res


ng, Inc. subm
and expansio


17: Fayette S


s a non‐profit
nty is workin
Renovations 
rgola outside 
ad been locate


Invitation to 
otified vial em
e web‐based


ws, the county
Channel 23. 


anuary 14, 20


s by the bid‐o
ont Geotechni
special inspec
ponsive” to t


mitted the low
on project cos


Senior Center 


, 501(c)(3) or
g with Mr. Da
will be made
the building 
ed. 


Bid #917 to s
mail.  Another
 Georgia Proc
y website, Ge


015.  Represe


opening date 
ical Consultan
ction services
he solicitatio


west bid, at $1
sts to a total o


Expansion &


rganization, w
an Gibbs, Exe
e to the Game
will be demo


select a Gene
r 922 vendors
curement Reg
eorgia Local G


entatives of 3


of January 27
nts, Inc. – sub
s.  They were 
n for a Gener


164,852.00.  I
of $186,452.0


& Renovations


which operate
ecutive Direct
e Room, Loun
olished, and a


eral Contracto
s throughout 
gistry.  In add
Government A


0 companies 


7, 2015 (plea
bmitted bids o
therefore, in
ral Contracto


If approved, t
00 as follows


s 


es in a buildin
tor of FSS, on 
nge, Meeting 
dditional spa


or for the wor
the State of 
dition, invitati
Access 


attended. 


se see the 
only for 
 the language
r. 


this will bring
: 


ng 
an 


ce 


rk.  A 


ions 


e of 


g the 







 
 
 
Use of Funds         
  Architecture & Design Work       
    Paid to Date             $19,207.44    
    Estimated Invoices Outstanding           2,392.56    
         Total Architecture & Design         $21,600.00  
  Construction: Gene Barber Construction, Inc.       164,852.00  
         Total Uses of Funds           186,452.00  
         
Sources of Funds         
  County Contributions Spent to Date     15,600.00    
  Additional County Contributions       2,464.00    
       Total County Contributions             18,064.00  
       Raised by Fayette Senior Services         168,388.00  
         Total Sources of Funds         186,452.00 
 
 
 
The Building and Grounds Maintenance Department recommends award of the contract to Gene Barber 
Contracting, Inc. for the not‐to‐exceed amount of $164,852.00. 
 
The Purchasing Department supports the recommendation by Building and Grounds Maintenance.  The 
county’s portion of funding is in the Building and Grounds Maintenance budget at 375‐10565‐5565K 
 
Attachment 







1 2 3 4 5 6 7
Aarene 


Contracting Amo Construction


Autaco 


Development, LLC


BRTU 


Construction, Inc CWI Construction


Diversidied 


Construction


Four Points 


Construction


Division 1 ‐ General Requirements


License, Permits & Fee 1,000.00$              ‐$                       1,500.00$               ‐$                         6,127.00$             4,550.00$                ‐$                     


Insurance 3,103.00$              5,817.00$              8,500.00$               7,000.00$              7,966.00$             2,730.00$                500.00$               


Administration 3,039.00$              6,930.00$              5,600.00$               24,850.00$            27,000.00$           8,000.00$                4,360.00$           


Superintendent Labor 20,869.00$            24,310.00$            21,000.00$             22,500.00$            21,000.00$           15,000.00$              18,310.00$         


Demolition & Trash Removal 7,500.00$              6,033.00$              14,000.00$             9,500.00$              9,415.00$             3,053.00$                4,600.00$           


Air Quality Management 750.00$                 3,573.00$              4,000.00$               1,500.00$              500.00$                 750.00$                   ‐$                     


Temporary Facilities 2,920.00$              ‐$                       2,000.00$               5,050.00$              340.00$                 750.00$                   1,650.00$           


General Contractors Overhead & Prof 10,116.00$            30,078.00$            25,000.00$             35,749.30$            64,000.00$           18,200.00$              10,182.82$         


Total General Requirements 49,297.00$            76,741.00$            81,600.00$             106,149.30$          136,348.00$         53,033.00$             39,602.82$         


Division 2 – Site Construction


Demolition – Pergola & Existing Sidew 4,965.00$              8,564.00$              4,000.00$               8,168.00$              4,393.00$             2,455.00$                6,007.00$           


Site Remediation 5,500.00$              860.00$                 1,500.00$               2,993.00$              2,500.00$             700.00$                   7,200.00$           


Total Site Construction 10,465.00$            9,424.00$              5,500.00$               11,161.00$            6,893.00$             3,155.00$                13,207.00$         


Division 3 ‐ Concrete


Concrete 5,100.00$              7,928.00$              500.00$                   ‐$                         5,200.00$             2,392.00$                8,890.00$           


Concrete Forming and Accessories 1,166.00$              3,000.00$              2,000.00$               1,390.00$              $                             ‐ 2,392.00$                ‐$                     


Concrete Reinforcing 826.00$                 ‐$                       7,000.00$               1,850.00$              $                             ‐ 2,392.00$                ‐$                     


Cast‐in‐place Concrete  2,788.00$              ‐$                       9,000.00$               8,150.00$              S                             ‐ 2,392.00$                ‐$                     


Total Concrete 9,880.00$              10,928.00$            18,500.00$             11,390.00$            5,200.00$             9,568.00$                8,890.00$           


Division 4 ‐ Masonry


Masonry 13,837.00$            9,731.00$              23,000.00$             14,636.00$            28,620.00$           8,350.00$                14,050.00$         


Total Masonry 13,837.00$            9,731.00$              23,000.00$             14,636.00$            28,620.00$           8,350.00$                14,050.00$         


Division 5 ‐  Metals


Metals ‐$                        ‐$                       1,000.00$               1,620.00$              500.00$                 450.00$                   950.00$               


Total Metals ‐$                        ‐$                       1,000.00$               1,620.00$              500.00$                 450.00$                   950.00$               


Division 6 ‐ Wood and Plastics


Woods, Plastics & Composites ‐$                        ‐$                       1,000.00$               2,644.00$              ‐$                        650.00$                   ‐$                     


Rough Carpentry 15,910.00$            ‐$                       14,000.00$             7,500.00$              29,920.00$           10,865.00$              12,850.00$         


Finish Carpentry 1,208.00$              ‐$                       4,000.00$               1,500.00$              11,700.00$           1,976.00$                2,850.00$           


P‐Lam Fabrication & Millwork ‐$                        ‐$                       1,000.00$               500.00$                  2,000.00$             1,600.00$                ‐$                     


Total Wood & Plastics 17,118.00$            11,251.00$            20,000.00$             12,144.00$            43,620.00$           15,091.00$             15,700.00$         


Division 7 – Thermal and Moisture Protection


Dampproofing & Waterproofing $                             ‐ $                             ‐ 10,500.00$             26,774.00$            5,300.00$             19,271.00$              3,000.00$           


Weather Barriers ‐$                        $                             ‐ 1,000.00$               2,660.00$              7,000.00$             ‐$                         3,456.00$           


Flashing and Sheet Metal 22,491.00$            $                             ‐ 2,200.00$               2,500.00$              1,200.00$             ‐$                         1,200.00$           


Joint Protection ‐$                        $                             ‐ 1,000.00$               2,000.00$              ‐$                        ‐$                         3,520.00$           


Total Thermal and Moisture Protection 22,491.00$            6,975.00$              14,700.00$             33,934.00$            13,500.00$           19,271.00$             11,176.00$         


Division 8 ‐ Doors & Windows


Wood Doors & Frames 7,180.00$              2,964.00$              3,500.00$               2,925.00$              3,561.00$             4,800.00$                4,150.00$           


Entrances, Storefronts and Curtain Wa 2,600.00$              4,877.00$              11,000.00$             3,400.00$              4,334.00$             4,000.00$                10,000.00$         


Windows 2,000.00$              80.00$                   1,500.00$               1,600.00$              ‐$                        2,250.00$                1,200.00$           


Hardware ‐$                        1,924.00$              1,100.00$               3,000.00$              1,340.00$             700.00$                   ‐$                     


Total Doors & Windows 11,780.00$            9,845.00$              17,100.00$             10,925.00$            9,235.00$             11,750.00$             15,350.00$         


Division 9 ‐ Finishes


Gyp Wallboard 4,009.00$              11,037.00$            7,500.00$               7,580.00$              9,715.00$             2,992.00$                5,408.00$           


Acoustical Ceilings and Grid 4,309.00$              6,244.00$              3,500.00$               3,420.00$              9,765.00$             5,088.00$                4,500.00$           


Flooring ‐ Laminate 14,860.00$            14,874.00$            12,000.00$             17,900.00$            15,524.00$           12,480.00$              15,567.00$         


Wall Finishes ‐$                        4,930.00$              1,500.00$               7,000.00$              11,060.00$           ‐$                         ‐$                     


Painting and Coating 4,183.00$              4,529.00$              6,750.00$               1,500.00$              8,015.00$             3,600.00$                3,850.00$           


Total Finishes 27,361.00$            41,614.00$            31,250.00$             37,400.00$            54,079.00$           24,160.00$             29,325.00$         


Division 10 ‐ Specialties


Fire Extinguishers 2,447.00$              240.00$                 1,100.00$               1,000.00$              2,144.00$             2,175.00$                2,160.73$           


Total Specialties 2,447.00$              240.00$                 1,100.00$               1,000.00$              2,144.00$             2,175.00$                2,160.73$           


Division 12 ‐ Furnishings


Ceiling Fans 3,490.00$              3,000.00$              1,200.00$               1,200.00$              ‐$                        5,400.00$                2,000.00$           


Relocating  Exist. Projector & Projecto 200.00$                 3,559.00$              500.00$                   2,440.00$              500.00$                 900.00$                   500.00$               


Blinds to Match existing ‐$                        535.00$                 500.00$                   1,440.00$              288.00$                 400.00$                   750.00$               


Total Furnishings 3,690.00$              7,094.00$              2,200.00$               5,080.00$              788.00$                 6,700.00$                3,250.00$           


Division 15 ‐ Mechanical


Plumbing 750.00$                 2,000.00$              5,000.00$               1,190.00$              975.00$                 500.00$                   1,500.00$           


Fire Protection 3,400.00$              8,870.00$              2,500.00$               5,000.00$              9,660.00$             1,500.00$                2,150.00$           


Heating, Ventilation & A/C 13,014.00$            8,927.00$              13,000.00$             12,500.00$            12,500.00$           12,500.00$              9,274.00$           


Total Mechanical 17,164.00$            19,797.00$            20,500.00$             18,690.00$            23,135.00$           14,500.00$             12,924.00$         


Division 16 ‐ Electrical


Service/Distribution/complete mat'l 8,500.00$              20,650.00$            21,000.00$             9,150.00$              12,600.00$           9,950.00$                10,950.00$         


Fire Alarm Systems ‐$                        1,200.00$              2,500.00$               800.00$                  2,000.00$             900.00$                   2,361.00$           


Total Electrical 8,500.00$              21,850.00$            23,500.00$             9,950.00$              14,600.00$           10,850.00$             13,311.00$         


Total Base Bid Prior to Allowance 194,030.00$    225,490.00$    259,950.00$      274,079.30$     338,662.00$    179,053.00$     179,896.55$  
AllowAdd ‐  $10,000.00 $10,000.00 $10,000.00 $10,000.00 $10,000.00 $10,000.00 $10,000.00


Total Including Allowance 204,030.00$    $235,490.00 $269,950.00 $284,079.30 $348,662.00 $189,053.00 $189,896.55


Invitation to Bid #917 - Fayette Senior Center Expansion







Division 1 ‐ General Requirements


License, Permits & Fee


Insurance


Administration


Superintendent Labor


Demolition & Trash Removal


Air Quality Management


Temporary Facilities


General Contractors Overhead & Prof


Total General Requirements


Division 2 – Site Construction


Demolition – Pergola & Existing Sidew


Site Remediation


Total Site Construction


Division 3 ‐ Concrete


Concrete


Concrete Forming and Accessories


Concrete Reinforcing


Cast‐in‐place Concrete 


Total Concrete


Division 4 ‐ Masonry


Masonry


Total Masonry


Division 5 ‐  Metals


Metals


Total Metals


Division 6 ‐ Wood and Plastics


Woods, Plastics & Composites


Rough Carpentry


Finish Carpentry


P‐Lam Fabrication & Millwork


Total Wood & Plastics


Division 7 – Thermal and Moisture Protecti


Dampproofing & Waterproofing


Weather Barriers


Flashing and Sheet Metal


Joint Protection


Total Thermal and Moisture Protection


Division 8 ‐ Doors & Windows


Wood Doors & Frames


Entrances, Storefronts and Curtain Wa


Windows


Hardware


Total Doors & Windows


Division 9 ‐ Finishes


Gyp Wallboard


Acoustical Ceilings and Grid


Flooring ‐ Laminate


Wall Finishes


Painting and Coating


Total Finishes


Division 10 ‐ Specialties


Fire Extinguishers


Total Specialties


Division 12 ‐ Furnishings


Ceiling Fans


Relocating  Exist. Projector & Projecto


Blinds to Match existing


Total Furnishings


Division 15 ‐ Mechanical


Plumbing


Fire Protection


Heating, Ventilation & A/C


Total Mechanical


Division 16 ‐ Electrical


Service/Distribution/complete mat'l


Fire Alarm Systems


Total Electrical


Total Base Bid Prior to Allowance
AllowAdd ‐ 


Total Including Allowance


8 9 10 11 12 13 14
Gene Barber 


Contracting


Headley 


Construction Kunj Construction McElroy, Inc.


Piedmont 


Geotech


Soco Contracting 


Co., Inc


Titleist Building 


Systems


‐$                        ‐$                        500.00$                ‐$                         10,086.00$             1,500.00$            


5,542.00$              2,981.00$               2,200.00$             1,700.00$              22,115.00$             2,950.00$            


4,554.00$              12,375.00$            1,700.00$             2,800.00$              7,535.00$               12,550.00$         


6,682.00$              20,150.00$            3,000.00$             12,000.00$            38,506.00$             22,680.00$         


4,518.00$              4,650.00$               4,500.00$             10,307.00$            7,189.00$               3,500.00$            


500.00$                 500.00$                  1,200.00$             620.00$                  2,675.00$               1,555.00$            


270.00$                 3,640.00$               2,500.00$             370.00$                  5,119.00$               455.00$               


10,105.00$            20,539.00$            21,000.00$           22,000.00$            76,263.00$             18,319.00$         


32,171.00$            64,835.00$            36,600.00$           49,797.00$            169,488.00$           63,509.00$         


‐$                        3,400.00$               4,500.00$             2,986.00$              947.00$                   ‐$                      


3,535.00$              3,500.00$               2,800.00$             1,200.00$              4,295.00$               14,800.00$         


3,535.00$              6,900.00$               7,300.00$             4,186.00$              5,242.00$               14,800.00$         


‐$                        ‐$                        6,800.00$             3,300.00$              5,375.00$               4,968.00$            


‐$                        850.00$                  1,350.00$             1,320.00$              3,651.00$               1,000.00$            


‐$                        1,000.00$               750.00$                1,520.00$              1,485.00$               856.00$               


‐$                        7,124.00$               1,900.00$             2,032.00$              14,189.00$             2,291.00$            


8,748.00$              8,974.00$               10,800.00$           8,172.00$              24,700.00$             9,115.00$           


8,216.00$              13,768.00$            5,400.00$             12,160.00$            7,406.00$               10,826.00$         


8,216.00$              13,768.00$            5,400.00$             12,160.00$            7,406.00$               10,826.00$         


650.00$                 ‐$                        175.00$                1,680.00$              18,902.00$             1,600.00$            


650.00$                 ‐$                        175.00$                1,680.00$              18,902.00$             1,600.00$           


‐$                        ‐$                        1,435.00$             10,700.00$            22,699.00$             8,896.00$            


14,975.00$            15,000.00$            7,800.00$             9,270.00$              2,592.00$               13,065.00$         


3,468.00$              2,799.00$               3,800.00$             9,700.00$              3,672.00$               1,678.00$            


460.00$                 ‐$                        2,100.00$             3,710.00$              1,728.00$               2,250.00$            


18,903.00$            17,799.00$            15,135.00$           33,380.00$            30,691.00$             25,889.00$         


1,800.00$              3,850.00$               480.00$                2,800.00$              2,020.00$               7,378.00$            


17,344.00$            500.00$                  2,875.00$             1,460.00$              1,188.00$               3,750.00$            


480.00$                 2,400.00$               130.00$                785.00$                  1,620.00$               $      ‐   


400.00$                 1,000.00$               225.00$                980.00$                  864.00$                   $      ‐   


20,024.00$            7,750.00$               3,710.00$             6,025.00$              5,692.00$               11,128.00$         


1,392.00$              2,700.00$               2,800.00$             3,200.00$              2,484.00$               1,600.00$            


1,180.00$              3,500.00$               6,118.00$             36,000.00$            5,940.00$               12,280.00$         


‐$                        500.00$                  1,200.00$             1,400.00$              2,754.00$               $      ‐   


‐$                        ‐$                        1,825.00$             1,690.00$              1,296.00$               645.00$               


2,572.00$              6,700.00$               11,943.00$           42,290.00$            12,474.00$             14,525.00$         


9,882.00$              6,700.00$               5,200.00$             4,100.00$              14,051.00$             7,553.00$            


‐$                        4,560.00$               5,848.00$             4,000.00$              41,958.00$             5,187.00$            


14,850.00$            11,500.00$            5,600.00$             14,118.00$            27,020.00$             19,246.00$         


‐$                        2,800.00$               4,740.00$             1,800.00$              9,936.00$               3,260.00$            


5,400.00$              4,800.00$               5,800.00$             5,100.00$              15,120.00$             5,150.00$            


30,132.00$            30,360.00$            27,188.00$           29,118.00$            108,085.00$           40,396.00$         


350.00$                 150.00$                  600.00$                760.00$                  972.00$                   275.00$               


350.00$                 150.00$                  600.00$                760.00$                  972.00$                   275.00$               


1,650.00$              ‐$                        1,500.00$             1,500.00$              2,268.00$               $      ‐   


320.00$                 ‐$                        600.00$                725.00$                  1,188.00$               $      ‐   


2,070.00$              ‐$                        300.00$                400.00$                  2,850.00$               190.00$               


4,040.00$              ‐$                        2,400.00$             2,625.00$              6,306.00$               190.00$               


1,071.00$              1,100.00$               1,800.00$             280.00$                  16,470.00$             780.00$               


2,940.00$              3,000.00$               2,800.00$             2,620.00$              5,440.00$               6,581.00$            


12,500.00$            15,875.00$            8,600.00$             12,600.00$            19,440.00$             11,286.00$         


16,511.00$            19,975.00$            13,200.00$           15,500.00$            41,350.00$             18,647.00$         


9,000.00$              7,000.00$               33,000.00$           11,300.00$            ‐$                          14,250.00$         


 $                            ‐ 470.00$                  3,500.00$             800.00$                  8,208.00$               1,950.00$            


9,000.00$              7,470.00$               36,500.00$           12,100.00$            8,208.00$               16,200.00$         


154,852.00$    184,681.00$    170,951.00$    217,793.00$     439,516.00$     227,100.00$   
$10,000.00 $10,000.00 $10,000.00 $10,000.00 $10,000.00 $10,000.00


$164,852.00 $194,681.00 $180,951.00 $227,793.00 $449,516.00 237,100.00$ 


(Non‐


Responsive)





		Buildings and Grounds- Senior Center Agenda Request File

		Buildings and Grounds- Senior Center Backup

		Buildings and Grounds- Senior Center Backup

		Bid 917 Senior Center - Purchasing Backup 1

		Bid 917 Senior Center - Purchasing Backup 2



		Buildings and Grounds- Senior Center Backup REV












COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Type of Request:


Commissioners Commissioner Steve Brown


Recognition of artist Pash Lima, who painted the mural at the Crosstown Water Treatment Plant, and a special thanks to the Dolce Hotel 


and Resort in Peachtree City for providing accommodations to Mr. Lima in support of this project.


The Fayette County Public Arts Committee was founded in 2014 with the purpose of finding ways to use art to enhance the County’s 


reputation, to contribute to the civic environment, and to enrich the lives of citizens and visitors through the involvement of professional 


artists to integrate public artwork throughout Fayette County. The committee's largest project to date in fulfilling this purpose is the 


Crosstown Water Treatment Plant Mural.  The committee's art intern, Shanequa Gay, spearheaded the project and placed a call for 


artists on September 3, 2014, and selected a finalist to create a large scale mural at the Crosstown Water Treatment Plant, located at 


3500 TDK Blvd. Peachtree City, Georgia, as a statement of the county's need for public exploration of Fayette's collective appreciation for 


art culture. The overall goal was to help establish Fayette County as an arts destination with a flourishing art community, and to 


encourage inventive and creative expression. Upon the deadline of submissions in October of 2014 the call had provided roughly 21 


artists for consideration.  The decision was made to grant the project to Mr. Pash Lima, an artist from Atlanta, Georgia with the 


experience, skill and talent needed to execute a successful mural.  The Crosstown Water Treatment Plant Mural begin in November 2014 


and upon the gracious contribution of the Dolce Hotel and Resort, Pash was provided hotel stay at no cost to allow for him to complete 


the project. The art work for the mural was completed in December 2014 and a sealant to preserve the mural will be added in April of 


2015 once weather permits.


Recognition of artist Pash Lima, who painted the mural at the Crosstown Water Treatment Plant, and a special thanks to the Dolce Hotel 


and Resort in Peachtree City for providing accommodations to Mr. Lima in support of this project.


Not Applicable.


No


Yes Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


Thursday, February 26, 2015 Proclamation/Recognition



fjones

Typewritten Text

Proclamation / Recognition #1












COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Type of Request:


Board of Commissioners Commissioner Steve Brown


Consideration of Commissioner Brown's request to adopt Resolution 2015-03- A Resolution on Transportation Funding Plans from the 


Georgia General Assembly.


Commissioner Brown has drafted Resolution 2015-03- A Resolution on Transportation Funding Plans from the Georgia Legislature.  This 


resolution formally requests that the State of Georgia endeavor to become a national leader in transportation reform by making 


transportation a priority in the State's budget, adopting specific plans dictating which projects will receive funding, concentrating on road 


and bridge infrastructure, eliminating proposed projects such as transit rail based on certifiable traffic congestion relief standards, and by 


avoiding cost soaring federal mandates with the state taking over the portion of the federal gasoline tax.   


 


The resolution also calls on the State of Georgia to conduct itself in a manner where there is no harm inflicted upon county governments, 


city governments, and school boards across Georgia. 


 


A copy of the resolution is provided with supporting documentation.


Adoption of  Resolution 2015-03- A Resolution on Transportation Funding Plans from the Georgia General Assembly as written by 


Commissioner Brown.


Not Applicable.


No


No Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


Thursday, February 26, 2015 New Business



fjones

Typewritten Text

New Business #11







�������������	
�������
�
������������
�
�


�������������������
�


 ���������������� �!��� �����	��"����!� ��
	��#��$�������� ������ �����


�


%$��� �� �������	�
����������������������������������������������������������������������
�������� �����!�"����


�
%$��� �� ���������������������������������������������������������������������������


�����������������#����������������������������������������������������������������
�����#�������������$�����%��������&�������������$�������������'�������������
(��������������������
�����&��������������#���������������������������������
��#������������������������������(������#����������������������������������"���


�
%$��� ��� )�������������*�����������������������������������������������������������������


������������������������������������������������������������������������������
����&��+�����������������������������������,����������#�"����


�
%$��� ��� � ��!����������������������������������������-�������������(�����������������������


�������������������������������������������."����
�


%$��� ��� ���������/�����-0����������������������������������($ 1�����������234�����������
���������������������������������������������5��3��������������������2.4����������
��������������������������������������1��6�-('78(�9����������������(�����������
��-���������������������������������������������������"����


�
%$��� ��� )��������������������������������(����������5������������������������:�;����������


+�������������,�������������5�����������������������������	����������������(����
7��������������#����������������������������������������(���&��������"����


� � � � � � �
%$��� ��� )������5������5�����������������������������������5�����������������������


�<����������������������������������������������������������=������������������
������
���������������������������5�������������������������������"����


�
%$��� ��� �����������������������������������#�������������������������#������#��
������3���������


��������������������������������������#����������������<�#�������������
��������"����


�
�
�
�


                                                 
1
 http://reason.org/files/21st_annual_highway_report.pdf 


2
 Report of the Joint Study Committee on Critical Transportation Infrastructure Committee 


3
 Rep. David Stover, House District 71 at Fayette GOP, Feb. 17, 2015 (Stover is a signer on HB 170) 


4
 “Poll: Most back gas tax hike,” AJC, Feb. 17, 2015; NOTE: One poll cited is by the Georgia Transportation 


Alliance made up of special interest groups like the Georgia Chamber of Commerce 
5
 “Historic transit bill meets critics,” AJC, Jan. 31, 2015 







%$��� ��� ���������������������#�������������������������(����7������������������%������
�������������%���������������������������0���������������������������	������
���������������%����������52�����������������������������������������������������

�����&���������"����


�
%$��� ��� 
���������������������*�����������>������(��������������������	4����������%������


����5����������������������*������������������5����������!����������������������
������#�����#����������#���������������������������<����;����������������������
����������������������������������������������������"����������������������������������
����(����7�����������#���������-��������������%����������5�����#����������������
+����&�����,������������������������������"����


�
%$��� ��� ?��(������������������������������������������5����������������������


�����������������������<���������������������������-���-�����������������������
�������������������������������������������5����������������#������������������
���<��������������������������@!�������:A;���������������(������������������A�����
�����.4�����������������������������������������������������������������0������
 ����&�����.���������0���������(�������"����


�
%$��� ��� �����������������������������(����7�������������������������������%��������������


���������5�����������������������������������������������������������������
��������������AA��������
���������������������������������������������������
�������������������������%���������������������%������B���- ��������������
�����������%������ ��������������������������������������������������*��������
�������������������������������������������������������������(������������
�������"����


�
%$��� �� )���������*�����������������������������������������������������������������


������������������5�������������������������������������������������������������
��������������������������������������������������������������������������������
������������������������������������������������������5�������������"����


�
%$��� �� ������������������������1��������������6���������-('8(�9�������5�����������


������������-��*�-����-�������������������������������������������������
����������������������"����


�
%$��� ��� )���#���������(����7�������������#���<������������������������������������������


������������������������������������������������������������������-��������������
�����<�����������������������
��������������������������������������#����������
�������������.����������������������������������������"����


�


                                                 
6
 “Abolish the Gas Tax,” Wall Street Journal, Jan. 15, 2015; NOTE: The bill was dropped in the US House of 


Representatives on Feb. 4 by Rep. Earl Blumenauer to raise the gas tax by 15 cents 
7
 The Highway Trust Fund subsidizes transit in Boston, Chicago, New York, Philadelphia, San Francisco and 


Washington D.C. 
8
 “Abolish the Gas Tax,” Wall Street Journal, Jan. 15, 2015 


9
 The HB 170 plan sets aside funding for transit by taxing alternative fuel vehicles 


10
 “A Streetcar Leaves Us Wanting,” Atlanta Magazine, Feb. 2015 


11
 http://www.fhwa.dot.gov/interstate/previousfacts.cfm 


12
 “Cause of the Housing Bubble, Burst and Recession Revealed: It's Growth Management,” 


http://www.planetizen.com/node/41867 
13


 “Georgia Banker Shows Road to Redemption for Failed-Bank CEOs,” American Banker, Jan. 7, 2014; 


http://www.privatebankofbuckhead.com/news/Clip%20-%20American%20Banker%20-%20Judy%20Turner.pdf 







&������$���	��������'�"��$ ������ �������0����������������%������0������������������
����������=�������������(���������������������������������������������������������������#����
������������������������������(���&��������������������������������������������������<������������������
����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������<����������
��������������������������������������������������<�������������������������������������������������
������������������������������������%����������������������(�����#����������������������������
%���������������5@�� ������������������������������ �������0����������������%������0������
��=��������������(�������������������������������������������������������������������������
����������������������������������������������������
�����@�
������������
� (�����������������2���������%����������	���������
�
� � � � �
� � � � � � � &� �"��	���##�������


� 	 (����������()������� �
�
�
������C� � � � � � � DDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDD�
� � � � � � � ������0������)@�8�����0������
DDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDD�
%�����7@�/������0������0���# 







Footnote #5Footnote #5







Footnote #s 6-8Footnote #s 6-8















Footnote #10Footnote #10



















Supporting


Document A


Supporting


Document A







Supporting Document BSupporting Document B







Supporting Document CSupporting Document C







Supporting Document Dng Document DSupporting











Supporting Document ESupporting Document E



















Supporting Document FSupporting Document F







Supporting Document GSupporting Document G







Supporting Document HSupporting Document H







Supporting Document ISupporting Document I





		Commissioners- Resolution 2015-03 Agenda Request File

		Commissioners- Resolution 2015-03 Backup










COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Type of Request:


Legal Attorney Dennis Davenport


Consideration of Ordinance 2015-03 amending the Fayette County Code of Ordinances by revising provisions pertaining to Lake Kedron, 


Starr's Mill, Lake Horton and Lake McIntosh. 


Earlier this year, staff began reserving pavilions at the various county lake reservoirs.  These proposed changes to the Fayette County 


Code of Ordinances is an effort to bring consistency to the Recreation Ordinances that are already in effect. 


 


Staff has observed that the ordinance, as it pertains to the operation of water-craft vessels, was not consistent with the Georgia 


Department of Natural Resources and these proposals will bring further bring consistency to state requirements. 


 


A Red-Lined Version of changes to the Fayette County Code of Ordinances is provided (see Exhibit A.) 


 


The final form of Ordinance 2015-03 is provided (see Exhibit B.)


Adoption of Ordinance 2015-03 amending the Fayette County Code of Ordinances by revising provisions pertaining to Lake Kedron, 


Starr's Mill, Lake Horton and Lake McIntosh. 


Not Applicable.


No


No Yes


Not Applicable


Yes


Thursday, February 26, 2015 New Business



fjones

Typewritten Text

New Business #10







CHAPTER 18.   PARKS AND RECREATION. 


 


ARTICLE II.   LAKE KEDRON. 
 


Sec. 18-49. - Definitions. 


 


The following words, terms and phrases, when used in this article, shall have the 
meanings ascribed to them in this section, except where the context clearly indicates a different 
meaning: 


 
City means the City of Peachtree City, Georgia, and any of its officials and/or agents and 


employees. 
 
Lake Kedron means the county reservoir established along Flat Creek in the city and 


owned and operated by this county. This definition includes the lake at its normal pool elevation, 
a certain flood easement as shown on the records as kept in the clerk's office of the county 
superior court, dam site and public access and facilities. 


 
Lake Kedron recreation facility means all pavilions, picnic areas and recreation areas 


around Lake Kedron as designated by the county. 
 
Owner means the county and/or the board of commissioners. 
 
Public access and facilities means any area open to the public in or about Lake Kedron as 


designated by the county. 
 
Vessel means any watercraft of any description used or capable of being used as a means 


of transportation on water and specifically includes, but is not limited to, inflatable rafts and 
homemade vessels. 


 
Sec. 18-50. - Hours of operation. 


 


Lake Kedron shall only be open to the general public from and to those public access and 
facility areas as designated by the county between the hours of 6:30 a.m. and 6:00 p.m. Eastern 
Standard Time or 6:30 a.m. and 8:30 p.m. daylight saving time, whichever is applicable. 
 


Sec. 18-51. - Prohibitions. 


 


The following shall be prohibited on or about Lake Kedron and any other and all property 
surrounding such area as being property of the owner: 


 
(1) Swimming, wading. 
 
(2) Any activity allowing bodily contact with the water. 
 


Exhibit AExhibit AExhibit A







(3) The operation of any hydrocarbon or alcohol alcohol-fueled power boats or other 
water craftvessels so powered. 


 
(4) Water skiing. 
 
(5) Scuba diving. 
 
(6) Alcoholic beverages, smoking or the use of tobacco products. 
 
(7) Fishing from the shore except for the shore within a Lake Kedron recreation 


facility. 
 
Sec. 18-52. - Miscellaneous. 


 


(a) The general public shall have access to Lake Kedron only at those areas designated as 
public access and facilities by the owner. 
 
(b) It shall be unlawful for any person under the age of 14 12 to operate any and all water 
craftvessel which are eitheris electrically, wind or manually powered upon Lake Kedron. No 
person under the age of 14 years old shall be allowed in or upon Lake Kedron unless 
accompanied by a parent or legal guardian or other adult over the age of 21 years old. 
 
Sec. 18-53. – Use of grounds and facilities. 
 
 Every person using a Lake Kedron recreation facility shall clean up all debris, extinguish 
all permitted fires, and leave the premises in good order and in a neat and sanitary condition. 
 
Sec. 18-54. – Group activity. 
 
 Whenever any group or organization desires to use a Lake Kedron recreation facility to 
host an event for more than five (5) people, a representative of such group shall first obtain a 
permit from the Fayette County Recreation Department for such purpose.  The Fayette County 
Recreation Department shall grant the application for a permit if it appears that the group will not 
interfere with the general use of Lake Kedron by individual members of the public, and if the 
group meets all other reasonable conditions which may be imposed by the Department.  Such 
application may contain a requirement for an indemnity bond and/or on site security to protect 
the county from liability of any kind or character and to protect county property from damage. 
 
Sec. 18-55. – Fees. 
 
 A user fee may be charged for any event requiring a permit pursuant to Section 18-54 of 
this Article.  Said fee shall be adopted as part of a schedule of fees by the Fayette County Board 
of Commissioners. 
 
Sec. 18-56. – Guidelines for issuance of special permits. 
 







(a) Permits for events at a Lake Kedron recreation facility shall be obtained by application to 
the director of the Fayette County Recreation Department or his or her designee.  Guidelines for 
the issuance of permits by the director include: 
 


(1) Whether the proposed activity or use of a Lake Kedron recreation facility will 
unreasonably interfere with or detract from the enjoyment of the lake or other 
����������	
���������	�	�����	������	�
	���	������ 


 
(2) Whether the proposed activity or use of a Lake Kedron recreation facility will 


unreasonably interfere or detract from the promotion of public health, welfare and 
��
���� 


 
(3) Whether the proposed activity or use of a Lake Kedron recreation facility is 


���������	�����������	��	������	���������	�����	��	����������	�������� 
 
(4) Whether the proposed activity or use of a Lake Kedron recreation facility will 


entail unusual, extraordinary or burdensome expenses or policy operation by the 
������� 


 
(5) Whether the proposed activity or use of a Lake Kedron recreation facility will 


conflict with existing lake a��	����������	���������	��� 
 
(6) Whether the desired Lake Kedron recreation facility has been reserved for another 


use. 
 


(b) The holder of any permit issued under this Article shall abide by all other state, county 
and lake and recreation laws, ordinances, rules and regulations and shall be liable for any loss, 
damage or injury sustained by any person whatsoever by reason of negligence of the person or 
persons to whom such permit shall have been issued. 
 
(c) The director of the Fayette County Recreation Department or the director of the Fayette 
County Water Systems or their designees shall have the authority to revoke any permit upon the 
finding of a violation of any laws, ordinances, rules or regulations or upon good cause shown. 
 
Secs. 18-5357—18-89. - Reserved. 


  







ARTICLE III.   STARR’S MILL. 
 


Sec. 18-90. - Definitions. 


 


The following words, terms and phrases, when used in this article shall have the meaning 
ascribed to them in this section, except where the context clearly indicates a different meaning: 


 
Owner means the county and/or the board of commissioners. 
 
Public access and facilities means any area open to the public in or about Starr's Mill as 


designated by the county. 
 
Starr's Mill means the county reservoir established in the county and owned and operated 


by this county. This definition includes the lake at its normal pool elevation, dam site and public 
access and facilities. 


 
Starr’s Mill recreation facility means all pavilions, picnic areas and recreation areas 


around Starr’s Mill as designated by the county. 
 
Vessel means any watercraft of any description used or capable of being used as a means 


of transportation on water and specifically includes, but is not limited to, inflatable rafts and 
homemade vessels. 


 
Sec. 18-91. - Hours of operation. 


 


Starr's Mill shall be open to the general public from and to those public access and 
facility areas as designated by the county between the hours of 6:30 a.m. and 6:00 p.m. Eastern 
Standard Time or 6:30 a.m. and 8:30 p.m. daylight saving time, whichever is applicable. 


 
Sec. 18-92. - Prohibitions. 


 


The following shall be prohibited on or about Starr's Mill and any other and all property 
surrounding such area as being property of the owner: 
 


(1) ���������	������� 
 


(2) Any activity allowing bodily contact with the ������ 
 


(3) The operation of any hydrocarbon or alcohol-fueled power boats or other water 
craftvessels ��	�������� 
 


(4) ������������ 
 


(5) ����	�������	and 
 


(6) Alcoholic beverages, smoking or the use of tobacco products. 







 
(7) Fishing from the shore except for the shore within a Starr’s Mill recreation 


facility. 
 
Sec. 18-93. - Miscellaneous. 


 


(a) The general public shall have access to Starr's Mill only at those areas designated as 
public access and facilities by the owner. 
 
(b) It shall be unlawful for any person under the age of 14 12 to operate any and all water 
craftvessel which are eitheris electrically, wind or manually powered upon Starr's Mill. No 
person under the age of 14 years old shall be allowed in or upon Starr's Mill unless accompanied 
by a parent or legal guardian or other adult over the age of 21 years old. 
 
Sec. 18-94. – Use of grounds and facilities. 
 
 Every person using a Starr’s Mill recreation facility shall clean up all debris, extinguish 
all permitted fires, and leave the premises in good order and in a neat and sanitary condition. 
 
Sec. 18-95. – Group activity. 
 
 Whenever any group or organization desires to use a Starr’s Mill recreation facility to 
host an event for more than five (5) people, a representative of such group shall first obtain a 
permit from the Fayette County Recreation Department for such purpose.  The Fayette County 
Recreation Department shall grant the application for a permit if it appears that the group will not 
interfere with the general use of Starr’s Mill by individual members of the public, and if the 
group meets all other reasonable conditions which may be imposed by the Department.  Such 
application may contain a requirement for an indemnity bond and/or on site security to protect 
the county from liability of any kind or character and to protect county property from damage. 
 
Sec. 18-96. – Fees. 
 
 A user fee may be charged for any event requiring a permit pursuant to Section 18-95 of 
this Article.  Said fee shall be adopted as part of a schedule of fees by the Fayette County Board 
of Commissioners. 
 
Sec. 18-97. – Guidelines for issuance of special permits. 
 
(a) Permits for events at a Starr’s Mill recreation facility shall be obtained by application to 
the director of the Fayette County Recreation Department or his or her designee.  Guidelines for 
the issuance of permits by the director include: 
 


(1) Whether the proposed activity or use of a Starr’s Mill recreation facility will 
unreasonably interfere with or detract from the enjoyment of the lake or other 
����������	
���������	�	�����	������	�
	���	������ 


 







(2) Whether the proposed activity or use of a Starr’s Mill recreation facility will 
unreasonably interfere or detract from the promotion of public health, welfare and 
sa
���� 


 
(3) Whether the proposed activity or use of a Starr’s Mill recreation facility is 


���������	�����������	��	������	���������	�����	��	����������	�������� 
 
(4) Whether the proposed activity or use of a Starr’s Mill recreation facility will entail 


unu�����	�������������	��	���������	��������	��	������	���������	�	���	������� 
 
(5) Whether the proposed activity or use of a Starr’s Mill recreation facility will 


���
����	����	��������	����	���	����������	���������	��� 
 
(6) Whether the desired Starr’s Mill recreation facility has been reserved for another 


use. 
 
(b) The holder of any permit issued under this Article shall abide by all other state, county 
and lake and recreation laws, ordinances, rules and regulations and shall be liable for any loss, 
damage or injury sustained by any person whatsoever by reason of negligence of the person or 
persons to whom such permit shall have been issued. 
 
(c) The director of the Fayette County Recreation Department or the director of the Fayette 
County Water Systems or their designees shall have the authority to revoke any permit upon the 
finding of a violation of any laws, ordinances, rules or regulations or upon good cause shown. 
 
Secs. 18-9498—18-131. - Reserved. 


  







ARTICLE IV.   LAKE HORTON. 
 


Sec. 18-132. - Definitions. 


 


The following words, terms and phrases, when used in this article shall have the meaning 
ascribed to them in this section, except where the context clearly indicates a different meaning: 


 
Lake Horton means the county reservoir established in the county and owned and 


operated by this county. This definition includes the lake at its normal pool elevation, a certain 
flood easement as shown on the records as kept in the clerk's office of the county superior court, 
dam site and public access and facilities. 


 
Lake Horton recreation facility means all pavilions, picnic areas and recreation areas 


around Lake Horton as designated by the county. 
 
Owner means the county and/or the board of commissioners. 
 
Public access and facilities means any area open to the public in or about Lake Horton as 


designated by the county. 
 
Vessel means any watercraft of any description used or capable of being used as a means 


of transportation on water and specifically includes, but is not limited to, inflatable rafts and 
homemade vessels. 


 
Sec. 18-133. - Hours of operation. 


 


Lake Horton shall be open to the general public from and to those public access and 
facility areas as designated by the county between the hours of 6:30 a.m. and 6:00 p.m. Eastern 
Standard Time or 6:30 a.m. and 8:30 p.m. daylight saving time, whichever is applicable. 


 
Sec. 18-134. - Prohibited activities. 


 


The following shall be prohibited on or about Lake Horton and any other and all property 
surrounding such area as being property of the owner: 


 
(1) ���������	������� 
(2) ���	��������	��������	�����	�������	����	���	������ 
(3) The operation of any hydrocarbon or alcohol-fueled power boats or other water 


craftvessels ��	�������� 
(4) �����	������� 
(5) ����	������� 
(6) Alcoholic beverages, smoking or the use of tobacco products�	��� 
(7) Fishing from shore except for the shore within the recreation area. 
 


Sec. 18-135. - Miscellaneous. 


 







(a) The general public shall have access to Lake Horton only at those areas designated as 
public access and facilities by the owner. 
 
(b) It shall be unlawful for any person under the age of 14 12 to operate any and all water 
craftvessel which are eitheris electrically, wind or manually powered upon Lake Horton. No 
person under the age of 14 years old shall be allowed in or upon Lake Horton unless 
accompanied by a parent or legal guardian or other adult over the age of 21 years old. 
 
(c) Entry of any and all vehicles registered in any county, aside from the countyFayette 
County, upon the grounds of Lake Horton, shall cause the accrual of a daily parking fee in an 
amount set forth by the county board of commissioners from time to time to be adopted as part of 
a schedule of fees by Fayette County Board of Commissioners. Said fee shall be paid by the 
occupants of said vehicle immediately subsequent to entering upon the Lake Horton grounds, in 
accordance with the procedures and rules posted for said payment. 
 
Sec. 18-136. – Use of grounds and facilities. 
 
 Every person using a Lake Horton recreation facility shall clean up all debris, extinguish 
all permitted fires, and leave the premises in good order and in a neat and sanitary condition. 
 
Sec. 18-137. – Group activity. 
 
 Whenever any group or organization desires to use a Lake Horton recreation facility to 
host an event for more than five (5) people, a representative of such group shall first obtain a 
permit from the Fayette County Recreation Department for such purpose.  The Fayette County 
Recreation Department shall grant the application for a permit if it appears that the group will not 
interfere with the general use of Lake Horton by individual members of the public, and if the 
group meets all other reasonable conditions which may be imposed by the Department.  Such 
application may contain a requirement for an indemnity bond and/or on site security to protect 
the county from liability of any kind or character and to protect county property from damage. 
 
Sec. 18-138. – Fees. 
 
 A user fee may be charged for any event requiring a permit pursuant to Section 18-54 of 
this Article.  Said fee shall be adopted as part of a schedule of fees by the Fayette County Board 
of Commissioners. 
 
Sec. 18-139. – Guidelines for issuance of special permits. 
 
(a) Permits for events at a Lake Horton recreation facility shall be obtained by application to 
the director of the Fayette County Recreation Department or his or her designee.  Guidelines for 
the issuance of permits by the director include: 
 


(1) Whether the proposed activity or use of a Lake Horton recreation facility will 
unreasonably interfere with or detract from the enjoyment of the lake or other 
����������	
���������	�	�����	������	�
	���	������ 







 
(2) Whether the proposed activity or use of a Lake Horton recreation facility will 


unreasonably interfere or detract from the promotion of public health, welfare and 
��
���� 


 
(3) Whether the proposed activity or use of a Lake Horton recreation facility is 


reasonably anticipated ��	������	���������	�����	��	����������	�������� 
 
(4) Whether the proposed activity or use of a Lake Horton recreation facility will 


entail unusual, extraordinary or burdensome expenses or policy operation by the 
������� 


 
(5) Whether the proposed activity or use of a Lake Horton recreation facility will 


���
����	����	��������	����	���	����������	���������	��� 
 
(6) Whether the desired Lake Horton recreation facility has been reserved for another 


use. 
 
(b) The holder of any permit issued under this Article shall abide by all other state, county 
and lake and recreation laws, ordinances, rules and regulations and shall be liable for any loss, 
damage or injury sustained by any person whatsoever by reason of negligence of the person or 
persons to whom such permit shall have been issued. 
 
(c) The director of the Fayette County Recreation Department or the director of the Fayette 
County Water Systems or their designees shall have the authority to revoke any permit upon the 
finding of a violation of any laws, ordinances, rules or regulations or upon good cause shown. 
 
Secs. 18-136140—18-175. - Reserved. 


  







ARTICLE V.   LAKE McINTOSH. 


 


Sec. 18-176. - Definitions. 


 


The following words, terms and phrases, when used in this article shall have the meaning 
ascribed to them in this section, except where the context clearly indicates a different meaning: 


 
Lake McIntosh means the county reservoir designated as Lake McIntosh and established 


in the county and owned and operated by this county. This definition includes the lake at its 
normal pool elevation, a certain flood easement as shown on the records as kept in the clerk's 
office of the county superior court, dam site and public access and facilities. 


 
Lake McIntosh recreation facility means all pavilions, picnic areas and recreation areas 


around Lake McIntosh as designated by the county. 
 
Owner means the county and/or the board of commissioners. 
 
Public assess and facilities means any area open to the public in or about Lake McIntosh 


as designated by the county. 
 
Vessel means any watercraft of any description used or capable of being used as a means 


of transportation on water and specifically includes, but is not limited to, inflatable rafts and 
homemade vessels. 


 
Sec. 18-177. - Hours of operation. 


 


Lake McIntosh shall be open to the general public from and to those public access and facility 
areas as designated by the county between the hours of 6:30 a.m. and 6:00 p.m. Eastern Standard 
Time or 6:30 a.m. and 8:30 p.m. daylight saving time, whichever is applicable. 
 
Sec. 18-178. - Prohibited activities. 


 


The following activities shall be prohibited on or about Lake McIntosh and any other 
property surrounding such area as being property of the owner: 


 
(1) ���������	������� 
 
(2) ���	��������	��������	�����	�������	����	���	������ 
 
(3) The operation of any hydrocarbon or alcohol-fueled power boats or other water 


craftvessels ��	�������� 
 
(4) �����	������� 
 
(5) ����	������� 
 







(6) Alcoholic beverages, smoking or the use of tobacco products�	��� 
 
(7) Fishing from shore except for the shore within the recreation area. 
 


Sec. 18-179. - Miscellaneous. 


(a) The general public shall have access to Lake McIntosh only at those areas designated as 
public access and facilities by the owner. 
 
(b) It shall be unlawful for any person under the age of 14 12 to operate any and all water 
craftvessel which are eitheris electrically, wind or manually powered upon Lake McIntosh. No 
person under the age of 14 years old shall be allowed in or upon Lake McIntosh unless 
accompanied by a parent or legal guardian or other adult over the age of 21 years old. 
 
(c) Entry of any and all vehicles registered in any county, aside from the countyFayette 
County, upon the grounds of Lake McIntosh, shall cause the accrual of a daily parking fee in an 
amount set forth by the county board of commissioners from time to time to be adopted as part of 
a schedule of fees by Fayette County Board of Commissioners. Said fee shall be paid by the 
occupants of said vehicle immediately subsequent to entering upon the Lake McIntosh grounds, 
in accordance with the procedures and rules posted for said payment. 
 
Sec. 18-180. - Penalty for violations. 


 


Any and all violations of this article shall be tried in the state court of the county. Upon 
conviction, such violator shall be subject to fine and/or imprisonment not to exceed $1,000.00 or 
30 days' imprisonment. 
 
Sec. 18-180. – Use of grounds and facilities. 
 
 Every person using a Lake McIntosh recreation facility shall clean up all debris, 
extinguish all permitted fires, and leave the premises in good order and in a neat and sanitary 
condition. 
 
Sec. 18-181. – Group activity. 
 
 Whenever any group or organization desires to use a Lake McIntosh recreation facility to 
host an event for more than five (5) people, a representative of such group shall first obtain a 
permit from the Fayette County Recreation Department for such purpose.  The Fayette County 
Recreation Department shall grant the application for a permit if it appears that the group will not 
interfere with the general use of Lake McIntosh by individual members of the public, and if the 
group meets all other reasonable conditions which may be imposed by the Department.  Such 
application may contain a requirement for an indemnity bond and/or on site security to protect 
the county from liability of any kind or character and to protect county property from damage. 
 
Sec. 18-182. – Fees. 
 







 A user fee may be charged for any event requiring a permit pursuant to Section 18-54 of 
this Article.  Said fee shall be adopted as part of a schedule of fees by the Fayette County Board 
of Commissioners. 
 
Sec. 18-183. – Guidelines for issuance of special permits. 
 
(a) Permits for events at a Lake McIntosh recreation facility shall be obtained by application 
to the director of the Fayette County Recreation Department or his or her designee.  Guidelines 
for the issuance of permits by the director include: 
 


(1) Whether the proposed activity or use of a Lake McIntosh recreation facility will 
unreasonably interfere with or detract from the enjoyment of the lake or other 
recreation facilities by other members of th�	������ 


 
(2) Whether the proposed activity or use of a Lake McIntosh recreation facility will 


unreasonably interfere or detract from the promotion of public health, welfare and 
��
���� 


 
(3) Whether the proposed activity or use of a Lake McIntosh recreation facility is 


���������	�����������	��	������	���������	�����	��	����������	�������� 
 
(4) Whether the proposed activity or use of a Lake McIntosh recreation facility will 


entail unusual, extraordinary or burdensome expenses or policy operation by the 
cou���� 


 
(5) Whether the proposed activity or use of a Lake McIntosh recreation facility will 


���
����	����	��������	����	���	����������	���������	��� 
 
(6) Whether the desired Lake McIntosh recreation facility has been reserved for 


another use. 
 
(b) The holder of any permit issued under this Article shall abide by all other state, county 
and lake and recreation laws, ordinances, rules and regulations and shall be liable for any loss, 
damage or injury sustained by any person whatsoever by reason of negligence of the person or 
persons to whom such permit shall have been issued. 
 
(c) The director of the Fayette County Recreation Department or the director of the Fayette 
County Water Systems or their designees shall have the authority to revoke any permit upon the 
finding of a violation of any laws, ordinances, rules or regulations or upon good cause shown. 
 







 
 ��


STATE OF GEORGIA 


FAYETTE COUNTY 


ORDINANCE 


NO. 2015-03 


AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE CODE OF ORDINANCES FOR 


FAYETTE COUNTY, GEORGIA; TO REVISE PROVISIONS PERTAINING TO 


LAKE KEDRON; TO REVISE PROVISIONS PERTAINING TO STARR’S MILL; TO 


REVISE PROVISIONS PERTAINING TO LAKE HORTON; TO REVISE 


PROVISIONS PERTAINING TO LAKE McINTOSH; TO REPEAL CONFLICTING 


ORDINANCES; TO PROVIDE FOR SEVERABILITY; TO PROMOTE THE PUBLIC 


HEALTH, SAFETY AND WELFARE, AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES. 


BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF FAYETTE 


COUNTY AND IT IS HEREBY ENACTED PURSUANT TO THE AUTHORITY OF 


THE SAME THAT THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF FAYETTE COUNTY AS IT 


PERTAINS TO PARKS AND RECREATION (CHAPTER 18), BE AMENDED AS 


FOLLOWS: 


 


Section 1. By adding new definitions of “Lake Kedron recreation facility” and “Vessel” 


in Section 18-49, pertaining to “Definitions”, of Article II of Chapter 18, to be 


read as follows: 


 Lake Kedron recreation facility means all pavilions, picnic areas and recreation 


areas around Lake Kedron as designated by the county. 


 Vessel means any watercraft of any description used or capable of being used 


Exhibit BExhibit BExhibit B







 
 ��


as a means of transportation on water and specifically includes, but is not limited to, 


inflatable rafts and homemade vessels. 


 


Section 2. By deleting Paragraph (3) of Section 18-51, pertaining to “Prohibitions”, of 


Article II of Chapter 18, in its entirety, and by replacing it with a new 


Paragraph (3) in Section 18-51 of Article II of Chapter 18, to be numbered and 


read as follows: 


(3) The operation of any hydrocarbon or alcohol-fueled power boats or other 


vessels so powered. 


 


Section 3. By deleting Paragraph (6) of Section 18-51, pertaining to “Prohibitions”, of 


Article II of Chapter 18, in its entirety, and by replacing it with a new 


Paragraph (6) in Section 18-51 of Article II of Chapter 18, to be numbered and 


read as follows: 


(6) Alcoholic beverages, smoking or the use of tobacco products. 


 


Section 4. By adding a new Paragraph (7) to Section 18-51, pertaining to “Prohibitions”, 


of Article II of Chapter 18, to be numbered and read as follows: 


(7) Fishing from the shore except for the shore within a Lake Kedron recreation 


facility. 


 


Section 5. By deleting Subsection (b) of Section 18-52, pertaining to “Miscellaneous”, of 


Article II of Chapter 18, in its entirety, and by replacing it with a new 







 
 ��


Subsection (b) in Section 18-52 of Article II of Chapter 18, to be numbered 


and read as follows: 


(b) It shall be unlawful for any person under the age of 12 to operate any vessel 


which is electrically, wind or manually powered upon Lake Kedron.  No person under 


the age of 14 years old shall be allowed in or upon Lake Kedron unless accompanied 


by a parent or legal guardian or other adult over the age of 21 years old. 


 


Section 6. By adding a new Section 18-53, pertaining to “Use of grounds and facilities”, a 


new Section 18-54, pertaining to “Group activity”, a new Section 18-55, 


pertaining to “Fees”, and a new Section 18-56, pertaining to “Guidelines for 


issuance of special permits”, to Article II of Chapter 18, to be numbered and 


read as follows: 


Sec. 18-53. Use of grounds and facilities. 


 Every person using a Lake Kedron recreation facility shall clean up all debris, 


extinguish all permitted fires, and leave the premises in good order and in a neat and 


sanitary condition. 


 


Sec. 18-54. Group activity. 


 Whenever any group or organization desires to use a Lake Kedron recreation 


facility to host an event for more than five (5) people, a representative of such group 


shall first obtain a permit from the Fayette County Recreation Department for such 


purpose.  The Fayette County Recreation Department shall grant the application for a 


permit if it appears that the group will not interfere with the general use of Lake 







 
 ��


Kedron by individual members of the public, and if the group meets all other 


reasonable conditions which may be imposed by the Department.  Such application 


may contain a requirement for an indemnity bond and/or on site security to protect the 


county from liability of any kind or character and to protect county property from 


damage. 


 


Sec. 18-55. Fees. 


 A user fee may be charged for any event requiring a permit pursuant to Section 


18-54 of this Article.  Said fee shall be adopted as part of a schedule of fees by the 


Fayette County Board of Commissioners. 


 


Sec. 18-56. Guidelines for issuance of special permits. 


(a) Permits for events at a Lake Kedron recreation facility shall be obtained by 


application to the director of the Fayette County Recreation Department or his or her 


designee.  Guidelines for the issuance of permits by the director include: 


(1) Whether the proposed activity or use of a Lake Kedron recreation 


facility will unreasonably interfere with or detract from the enjoyment 


of the lake or other recreation facilities by other members of the public; 


(2) Whether the proposed activity or use of a Lake Kedron recreation 


facility will unreasonably interfere or detract from the promotion of 


public health, welfare and safety; 


(3) Whether the proposed activity or use of a Lake Kedron recreation 


facility is reasonably anticipated to incite violence, crime or disorderly 







 
 ��


conduct; 


(4) Whether the proposed activity or use of a Lake Kedron recreation 


facility will entail unusual, extraordinary or burdensome expenses or 


policy operation by the county; 


(5) Whether the proposed activity or use of a Lake Kedron recreation 


facility will conflict with existing lake and recreation services; and 


(6) Whether the desired Lake Kedron recreation facility has been reserved 


for another use. 


(b) The holder of any permit issued under this Article shall abide by all other state, 


county and lake and recreation laws, ordinances, rules and regulations and shall be 


liable for any loss, damage or injury sustained by any person whatsoever by reason of 


negligence of the person or persons to whom such permit shall have been issued. 


(c) The director of the Fayette County Recreation Department or the director of 


the Fayette County Water Systems or their designees shall have the authority to revoke 


any permit upon the finding of a violation of any laws, ordinances, rules or regulations 


or upon good cause shown. 


 


Section 7. By adding new definitions of “Starr’s Mill recreation facility” and “Vessel” in 


Section 18-90, pertaining to “Definitions”, of Article III of Chapter 18, to be 


read as follows: 


 Starr’s Mill recreation facility means all pavilions, picnic areas and recreation 


areas around Starr’s Mill as designated by the county. 


 Vessel means any watercraft of any description used or capable of being used 







 
 ��


as a means of transportation on water and specifically includes, but is not limited to, 


inflatable rafts and homemade vessels. 


 


Section 8. By deleting Paragraph (3) of Section 18-92, pertaining to “Prohibitions”, of 


Article III of Chapter 18, in its entirety, and by replacing it with a new 


Paragraph (3) in Section 18-92 of Article III of Chapter 18, to be numbered 


and read as follows: 


(3) The operation of any hydrocarbon or alcohol-fueled power boats or other 


vessels so powered; 


 


Section 9. By deleting Paragraph (6) of Section 18-92, pertaining to “Prohibitions”, of 


Article III of Chapter 18, in its entirety, and by replacing it with a new 


Paragraph (6) in Section 18-92 of Article III of Chapter 18, to be numbered 


and read as follows: 


(6) Alcoholic beverages, smoking or the use of tobacco products; and 


 


Section 10. By deleting the word “and” from the end of Paragraph (5) of Section 18-51, 


pertaining to “Prohibitions”, of Article II of Chapter 18, and by adding a new 


Paragraph (7) to Section 18-51 of Article II of Chapter 18, to be numbered and 


read as follows: 


(7) Fishing from the shore except for the shore within a Starr’s Mill recreation 


facility. 


 







 
 ��


Section 11. By deleting Subsection (b) of Section 18-93, pertaining to “Miscellaneous”, of 


Article III of Chapter 18, in its entirety, and by replacing it with a new 


Subsection (b) in Section 18-93 of Article III of Chapter 18, to be numbered 


and read as follows: 


(b) It shall be unlawful for any person under the age of 12 to operate any vessel 


which is electrically, wind or manually powered upon Starr’s Mill.  No person under 


the age of 14 years old shall be allowed in or upon Starr’s Mill unless accompanied by 


a parent or legal guardian or other adult over the age of 21 years old. 


 


Section 12. By adding a new Section 18-94, pertaining to “Use of grounds and facilities”, a 


new Section 18-95, pertaining to “Group activity”, a new Section 18-96, 


pertaining to “Fees”, and a new Section 18-97, pertaining to “Guidelines for 


issuance of special permits”, to Article III of Chapter 18, to be numbered and 


read as follows: 


Sec. 18-94. Use of grounds and facilities. 


 Every person using a Starr’s Mill recreation facility shall clean up all debris, 


extinguish all permitted fires, and leave the premises in good order and in a neat and 


sanitary condition. 


 


Sec. 18-95. Group activity. 


 Whenever any group or organization desires to use a Starr’s Mill recreation 


facility to host an event for more than five (5) people, a representative of such group 


shall first obtain a permit from the Fayette County Recreation Department for such 







 
 	�


purpose.  The Fayette County Recreation Department shall grant the application for a 


permit if it appears that the group will not interfere with the general use of Starr’s Mill 


by individual members of the public, and if the group meets all other reasonable 


conditions which may be imposed by the Department.  Such application may contain a 


requirement for an indemnity bond and/or on site security to protect the county from 


liability of any kind or character and to protect county property from damage. 


 


Sec. 18-96. Fees. 


 A user fee may be charged for any event requiring a permit pursuant to Section 


18-95 of this Article.  Said fee shall be adopted as part of a schedule of fees by the 


Fayette County Board of Commissioners. 


 


Sec. 18-97. Guidelines for issuance of special permits. 


(a) Permits for events at a Starr’s Mill recreation facility shall be obtained by 


application to the director of the Fayette County Recreation Department or his or her 


designee.  Guidelines for the issuance of permits by the director include: 


(1) Whether the proposed activity or use of a Starr’s Mill recreation facility 


will unreasonably interfere with or detract from the enjoyment of the 


lake or other recreation facilities by other members of the public; 


(2) Whether the proposed activity or use of a Starr’s Mill recreation facility 


will unreasonably interfere or detract from the promotion of public 


health, welfare and safety; 


(3) Whether the proposed activity or use of a Starr’s Mill recreation facility 







 
 
�


is reasonably anticipated to incite violence, crime or disorderly 


conduct; 


(4) Whether the proposed activity or use of a Starr’s Mill recreation facility 


will entail unusual, extraordinary or burdensome expenses or policy 


operation by the county; 


(5) Whether the proposed activity or use of a Starr’s Mill recreation facility 


will conflict with existing lake and recreation services; and 


(6) Whether the desired Starr’s Mill recreation facility has been reserved 


for another use. 


(b) The holder of any permit issued under this Article shall abide by all other state, 


county and lake and recreation laws, ordinances, rules and regulations and shall be 


liable for any loss, damage or injury sustained by any person whatsoever by reason of 


negligence of the person or persons to whom such permit shall have been issued. 


(c) The director of the Fayette County Recreation Department or the director of 


the Fayette County Water Systems or their designees shall have the authority to revoke 


any permit upon the finding of a violation of any laws, ordinances, rules or regulations 


or upon good cause shown. 


 


Section 13. By adding new definitions of “Lake Horton recreation facility” and “Vessel” in 


Section 18-132, pertaining to “Definitions”, of Article IV of Chapter 18, to be 


read as follows: 


 Lake Horton recreation facility means all pavilions, picnic areas and recreation 


areas around Lake Horton as designated by the county. 







 
 ���


 Vessel means any watercraft of any description used or capable of being used 


as a means of transportation on water and specifically includes, but is not limited to, 


inflatable rafts and homemade vessels. 


 


Section 14. By deleting Paragraph (3) of Section 18-134, pertaining to “Prohibited 


activities”, of Article IV of Chapter 18, in its entirety, and by replacing it with 


a new Paragraph (3) in Section 18-134 of Article IV of Chapter 18, to be 


numbered and read as follows: 


(3) The operation of any hydrocarbon or alcohol-fueled power boats or other 


vessels so powered; 


 


Section 15. By deleting Paragraph (6) of Section 18-134, pertaining to “Prohibited 


activities”, of Article IV of Chapter 18, in its entirety, and by replacing it with 


a new Paragraph (6) in Section 18-134 of Article IV of Chapter 18, to be 


numbered and read as follows: 


(6) Alcoholic beverages, smoking or the use of tobacco products; and 


 


Section 16. By deleting Subsection (b) of Section 18-135, pertaining to “Miscellaneous”, 


of Article IV of Chapter 18, in its entirety, and by replacing it with a new 


Subsection (b) in Section 18-135 of Article IV of Chapter 18, to be numbered 


and read as follows: 


(b) It shall be unlawful for any person under the age of 12 to operate any vessel 


which is electrically, wind or manually powered upon Lake Horton.  No person under 







 
 ���


the age of 14 years old shall be allowed in or upon Lake Horton unless accompanied 


by a parent or legal guardian or other adult over the age of 21 years old. 


 


Section 17. By deleting Subsection (c) of Section 18-135, pertaining to “Miscellaneous”, 


of Article IV of Chapter 18, in its entirety, and by replacing it with a new 


Subsection (c) in Section 18-135 of Article IV of Chapter 18, to be numbered 


and read as follows: 


(c) Entry of any and all vehicles registered in any county, aside from Fayette 


County, upon the grounds of Lake Horton shall cause the accrual of a daily of annual 


parking fee in an amount to be adopted as part of a schedule of fees by Fayette County 


Board of Commissioners.  Said fee shall be paid by the occupants of said vehicle 


subsequent to entering the Lake Horton grounds, in accordance with the procedures 


and rules posted for said payment. 


 


Section 18. By adding a new Section 18-136, pertaining to “Use of grounds and facilities”, 


a new Section 18-137, pertaining to “Group activity”, a new Section 18-138, 


pertaining to “Fees”, and a new Section 18-139, pertaining to “Guidelines for 


issuance of special permits”, to Article IV of Chapter 18, to be numbered and 


read as follows: 


Sec. 18-136. Use of grounds and facilities. 


 Every person using a Lake Horton recreation facility shall clean up all debris, 


extinguish all permitted fires, and leave the premises in good order and in a neat and 


sanitary condition. 







 
 ���


 


Sec. 18-137. Group activity. 


 Whenever any group or organization desires to use a Lake Horton recreation 


facility to host an event for more than five (5) people, a representative of such group 


shall first obtain a permit from the Fayette County Recreation Department for such 


purpose.  The Fayette County Recreation Department shall grant the application for a 


permit if it appears that the group will not interfere with the general use of Lake 


Horton by individual members of the public, and if the group meets all other 


reasonable conditions which may be imposed by the Department.  Such application 


may contain a requirement for an indemnity bond and/or on site security to protect the 


county from liability of any kind or character and to protect county property from 


damage. 


 


Sec. 18-138. Fees. 


 A user fee may be charged for any event requiring a permit pursuant to Section 


18-54 of this Article.  Said fee shall be adopted as part of a schedule of fees by the 


Fayette County Board of Commissioners. 


 


Sec. 18-139. Guidelines for issuance of special permits. 


(a) Permits for events at a Lake Horton recreation facility shall be obtained by 


application to the director of the Fayette County Recreation Department or his or her 


designee.  Guidelines for the issuance of permits by the director include: 


(1) Whether the proposed activity or use of a Lake Horton recreation 







 
 ���


facility will unreasonably interfere with or detract from the enjoyment 


of the lake or other recreation facilities by other members of the public; 


(2) Whether the proposed activity or use of a Lake Horton recreation 


facility will unreasonably interfere or detract from the promotion of 


public health, welfare and safety; 


(3) Whether the proposed activity or use of a Lake Horton recreation 


facility is reasonably anticipated to incite violence, crime or disorderly 


conduct; 


(4) Whether the proposed activity or use of a Lake Horton recreation 


facility will entail unusual, extraordinary or burdensome expenses or 


policy operation by the county; 


(5) Whether the proposed activity or use of a Lake Horton recreation 


facility will conflict with existing lake and recreation services; and 


(6) Whether the desired Lake Horton recreation facility has been reserved 


for another use. 


(b) The holder of any permit issued under this Article shall abide by all other state, 


county and lake and recreation laws, ordinances, rules and regulations and shall be 


liable for any loss, damage or injury sustained by any person whatsoever by reason of 


negligence of the person or persons to whom such permit shall have been issued. 


(c) The director of the Fayette County Recreation Department or the director of 


the Fayette County Water Systems or their designees shall have the authority to revoke 


any permit upon the finding of a violation of any laws, ordinances, rules or regulations 


or upon good cause shown. 







 
 ���


 


Section 19. By adding new definitions of “Lake McIntosh recreation facility” and “Vessel” 


in Section 18-176, pertaining to “Definitions”, of Article V of Chapter 18, to 


be read as follows: 


 Lake McIntosh recreation facility means all pavilions, picnic areas and 


recreation areas around Lake McIntosh as designated by the county. 


 Vessel means any watercraft of any description used or capable of being used 


as a means of transportation on water and specifically includes, but is not limited to, 


inflatable rafts and homemade vessels. 


 


Section 20. By deleting Paragraph (3) of Section 18-178, pertaining to “Prohibited 


activities”, of Article V of Chapter 18, in its entirety, and by replacing it with a 


new Paragraph (3) in Section 18-178 of Article V of Chapter 18, to be 


numbered and read as follows: 


(3) The operation of any hydrocarbon or alcohol-fueled power boats or other 


vessels so powered; 


 


Section 21. By deleting Paragraph (6) of Section 18-178, pertaining to “Prohibited 


activities”, of Article V of Chapter 18, in its entirety, and by replacing it with a 


new Paragraph (6) in Section 18-178 of Article V of Chapter 18, to be 


numbered and read as follows: 


(6) Alcoholic beverages, smoking or the use of tobacco products; and 


 







 
 ���


Section 22. By deleting Subsection (b) of Section 18-179, pertaining to “Miscellaneous”, 


of Article V of Chapter 18, in its entirety, and by replacing it with a new 


Subsection (b) in Section 18-179 of Article V of Chapter 18, to be numbered 


and read as follows: 


(b) It shall be unlawful for any person under the age of 12 to operate any vessel 


which is electrically, wind or manually powered upon Lake McIntosh.  No person 


under the age of 14 years old shall be allowed in or upon Lake McIntosh unless 


accompanied by a parent or legal guardian or other adult over the age of 21 years old. 


 


Section 23. By deleting Subsection (c) of Section 18-179, pertaining to “Miscellaneous”, 


of Article V of Chapter 18, in its entirety, and by replacing it with a new 


Subsection (c) in Section 18-179 of Article V of Chapter 18, to be numbered 


and read as follows: 


(c) Entry of any and all vehicles registered in any county, aside from Fayette 


County, upon the grounds of Lake McIntosh shall cause the accrual of a daily of 


annual parking fee in an amount to be adopted as part of a schedule of fees by Fayette 


County Board of Commissioners.  Said fee shall be paid by the occupants of said 


vehicle subsequent to entering the Lake McIntosh grounds, in accordance with the 


procedures and rules posted for said payment. 


 


Section 24. By adding a new Section 18-181, pertaining to “Use of grounds and facilities”, 


a new Section 18-182, pertaining to “Group activity”, a new Section 18-183, 


pertaining to “Fees”, and a new Section 18-184, pertaining to “Guidelines for 







 
 ���


issuance of special permits”, to Article V of Chapter 18, to be numbered and 


read as follows: 


Sec. 18-181. Use of grounds and facilities. 


 Every person using a Lake McIntosh recreation facility shall clean up all 


debris, extinguish all permitted fires, and leave the premises in good order and in a 


neat and sanitary condition. 


 


Sec. 18-182. Group activity. 


 Whenever any group or organization desires to use a Lake McIntosh recreation 


facility to host an event for more than five (5) people, a representative of such group 


shall first obtain a permit from the Fayette County Recreation Department for such 


purpose.  The Fayette County Recreation Department shall grant the application for a 


permit if it appears that the group will not interfere with the general use of Lake 


McIntosh by individual members of the public, and if the group meets all other 


reasonable conditions which may be imposed by the Department.  Such application 


may contain a requirement for an indemnity bond and/or on site security to protect the 


county from liability of any kind or character and to protect county property from 


damage. 


 


Sec. 18-183. Fees. 


 A user fee may be charged for any event requiring a permit pursuant to Section 


18-54 of this Article.  Said fee shall be adopted as part of a schedule of fees by the 


Fayette County Board of Commissioners. 







 
 ���


 


Sec. 18-184. Guidelines for issuance of special permits. 


(a) Permits for events at a Lake McIntosh recreation facility shall be obtained by 


application to the director of the Fayette County Recreation Department or his or her 


designee.  Guidelines for the issuance of permits by the director include: 


(1) Whether the proposed activity or use of a Lake McIntosh recreation 


facility will unreasonably interfere with or detract from the enjoyment 


of the lake or other recreation facilities by other members of the public; 


(2) Whether the proposed activity or use of a Lake McIntosh recreation 


facility will unreasonably interfere or detract from the promotion of 


public health, welfare and safety; 


(3) Whether the proposed activity or use of a Lake McIntosh recreation 


facility is reasonably anticipated to incite violence, crime or disorderly 


conduct; 


(4) Whether the proposed activity or use of a Lake McIntosh recreation 


facility will entail unusual, extraordinary or burdensome expenses or 


policy operation by the county; 


(5) Whether the proposed activity or use of a Lake McIntosh recreation 


facility will conflict with existing lake and recreation services; and 


(6) Whether the desired Lake McIntosh recreation facility has been 


reserved for another use. 


(b) The holder of any permit issued under this Article shall abide by all other state, 


county and lake and recreation laws, ordinances, rules and regulations and shall be 







 
 �	�


liable for any loss, damage or injury sustained by any person whatsoever by reason of 


negligence of the person or persons to whom such permit shall have been issued. 


(c) The director of the Fayette County Recreation Department or the director of 


the Fayette County Water Systems or their designees shall have the authority to revoke 


any permit upon the finding of a violation of any laws, ordinances, rules or regulations 


or upon good cause shown. 


 


Section 25. By deleting Section 18-180, pertaining to “Penalty for violations”, from Article 


V of Chapter 18, in its entirety. 


 


Section 26. This ordinance shall become effective immediately upon its adoption by the 


Board of Commissioners for Fayette County. 


 


Section 27. All other ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with this ordinance are 


hereby repealed. 


 


Section 28. In any event any section, subsection, sentence, clause or phrase of this 


Ordinance shall be declared or adjudged invalid or unconstitutional, such 


adjudication shall in no manner affect other sections, subsections, sentences, 


clauses or phrases of this Ordinance, which shall remain in full force and effect 


as if the section, subsection, sentence, clause or phrase so declared or adjudged 


invalid or unconstitutional were not a part thereof.  The Board of 


Commissioners hereby declares that it would have passed the remaining parts 







 
 �
�


of this Ordinance if it had known that such part or parts hereof would be 


declared or adjudged invalid or unconstitutional.


 


 


 


 


SO ENACTED this ______ day of ____________________, 2015. 


 
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF 
FAYETTE COUNTY 


 
 


By:_______________________ 
     Charles Oddo, Chairman 


(SEAL)  
 


 
ATTEST:      
 
 
___________________________ 
Floyd Jones, County Clerk 
 
 
Approved as to form: 
 
___________________________ 
County Attorney 





		Legal- Ordinance 2015-03 Agenda Request File

		Legal- Ordinance 2015-03 Backup










COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Type of Request:


Planning and Zoning Dennis Dutton


Consideration of the City of Fayetteville's annexation of 140 Walker Parkway and the rezoning of said property from C-H (Highway-


Commercial) to C-3 (Highway-Commercial).


The City of Fayetteville has notified Fayette County of an application to annex 140 Walker Parkway which consists of 1.01 acres. The 


City has also notified the County of its intention to rezone the property from C-H (Highway-Commercial) to C-3 (Highway-Commercial). 


 


The county's governing authority may either  "object" to the annexation, by majority vote, or choose not to object to the annexation 


request. 


 


Per Section 36-36-113 of the Georgia Code, Fayette County must deliver their objection to the annexation by certified mail or statutory 


overnight delivery not later than the end of the thirtieth calendar day following receipt of the notice. The deadline for delivery of an 


objection is March 29, 2013. 


 


Staff has reviewed the application and finds no grounds for a bona-fide land use objection.


Approval of the City of Fayetteville's annexation of 140 Walker Parkway and the rezoning of said property from C-H (Highway-


Commercial) to C-3 (Highway-Commercial).


Not Applicable.


No


No Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


Thursday, February 26, 2015 New Business



fjones

Typewritten Text

New Business #8



































R-20


NA


C-H


R-40


R-40


C-H


C-H


R-40


NA


C-H


C-H


NA


NA


C-H


C-H
C-H


C-H


NA


NA


R-40


R-40


R-40


NA


R-40


A-R


R-40


R-40


NA C-H


C-H
NA


NA


NA


NA


NA


NA


A-R
S-Z


A-R


C-H


C-H


C-H


C-H


NA


NA


R-40


C-H


NA


Fayettville
Annexation 


140 Walker Pkwy
Zoning


SUBJECT 


PROPERTY


SR
 8


5 
N
or


th


Fayetteville


Fayetteville


W
a
lk


e
r P


k
w


y


Source: Zoning MapSource: Z: Zoning Map







OFFICE


COMMERCIAL


TRANS.,


UTIL., &


COMM.


LOW DENSITY


RESIDENTIAL


Fayettville
Annexation 


140 Walker Pkwy
Land Use Plan


SUBJECT 


PROPERTY


SR
 8


5 
N
or


th


Fayetteville


Fayetteville


W
a
lk


e
r P


k
w


y


Source: Comprehensive Land Use Plan MapSource: Comprehensive Land Use Plan Map







Fayettville
Annexation 


140 Walker Pkwy
Aerials


SUBJECT 


PROPERTY


SR
 8


5 
N
or


th


Fayetteville


Fayetteville


W
a
lk


e
r P


k
w


y





































		Planning and Zoning- 140 Walker Parkway Agenda Request File

		Planning and Zoning- 140 Walker Parkway Backup










COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Type of Request:


Planning and Zoning Dennis Dutton


Approval of a request from the Olivia Estates Subdivision's Home Owners' Association seeking authorization for the use of motorized cart 


travel on all streets within the subdivision in accordance with Article III Motorized Carts of the Fayette County Code.


Board of Commissioners' approval is required to designate streets for motorized cart travel, per Article III Motorized Carts of the Fayette 


County Code.  


 


This request pertains to internal subdivision streets that are not subject to the same evaluation as external streets that exist outside 


subdivisions.  Twenty-five subdivisions have been approved for motorized cart use on internal streets from 1995 through 2013.  The 


street in Olivia Estates Subdivision is Olivia Court and it has a posted speed limit of 25 MPH. 


 


Once the street has been approved, staff will update the list of streets authorized for motorized cart use and will forward a copy to 


Brian Eubanks of the Fayette County Sheriff's Department for enforcement and to Phil Mallon in the Public Works Department for the 


posting of proper signage.


Approval of a request from the Olivia Estates Subdivision's Home Owners' Association seeking authorization for the use of motorized cart 


travel on all streets within the subdivision in accordance with Article III Motorized Carts of the Fayette County Code.


Not Applicable.


No


No Yes


No


No Yes


Thursday, February 26, 2015 Consent
































COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Type of Request:


Planning and Zoning Dennis Dutton


Public Hearing of Petition No. RP-054-15, Joe Wayton, Owner, request to develop a Farm to establish agricultural uses on 6.49 acres 


consisting of lots 2 and 3 of Alvin Acres Subdivision, with said property being located in Land Lot 197 of the 5th District and fronting on 


Neely Road. (The Applicant has requested to withdraw the petition.)


Planning Commission Recommendation: Al Gilbert made a motion to recommend approval of the withdrawal of   Petition RP-054-15. 


Brian Haren seconded the motion.  The motion passed 3-1.  Bob Simmons voted in opposition to the motion. 


 


Staff recommends approval of the withdrawal of Petition No. RP-054-15. 


 


This request is partnered with Public Hearing #2- Petition No. 1241-15.


Approval of request to withdraw Petition No. RP-054-15.


Not Applicable.


No


No Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


This request is partnered with Public Hearing #2- Petition No. 1241-15.


Thursday, February 26, 2015 Public Hearing



fjones

Typewritten Text

Public Hearing #3

























		Planning and Zoning- Petiton RP-054-15 Agenda Request File

		Planning and Zoning- Petiton RP-054-15 Backup










COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Type of Request:


Planning  and Zoning Dennis Dutton


Public Hearing of Petition No. 1241-15, Joe Wayton, Owner, request to rezone 6.49 acres from R-20 to A-R to develop a Farm to 


establish agricultural uses, with said property being located in Land Lot 197 of the 5th District and fronting on Neely Road. (The Applicant 


has requested to withdraw the petition.)


Planning Commission Recommendation:  Brian Haren made a motion to recommend approval of the withdrawal of  Petition 1241-15.  Al 


Gilbert seconded the motion.  The motion passed 3-1.  Bob Simmons voted in opposition to the motion. 


 


Staff recommends approval of the withdrawal of  Petition 1241-15


Approval of request to withdraw Petition No. 1241-15.


Not Applicable.


No


No Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


This request is partnered with Public Hearing #3- Petition No. RP-054-15.


Thursday, February 26, 2015 Public Hearing



fjones

Typewritten Text

Public Hearing #2

























		Planning and Zoning- Rezoning 1241-15 Agenda Request File

		Planning and Zoning- Rezoning 1241-15 Backup










COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Tax Assessors Joel T. Benton


Approval of the disposition of tax refunds, in an aggregate amount of $4,151.43, as recommended by the Tax Assessor's Office.


When a taxpayer feels that an error has occurred with respect to taxes paid to Fayette County on Real Estate and Personal Property tax 


bills, they have the right to request a Refund under O.C.G.A. 48-5-380. This request is given to the Tax Assessors' Office in order to be 


reviewed in detail and the appropriate recommendation(s) are then forwarded to the Board of Commissioner's for their final approval of 


said requests. 


 


Requests from Allan and Penny Barber, Steven Hayne, Jeff Lindsey Communities, Inc., JR Homes of Alabama, LLC., and Ballard 


Terrace, LLC. are recommended for approval by staff.  This aggregate amount recommended for refund is $4151.43. 


 


A second request from Mr. Steven Hayne, in the amount of $84.51 is recommended for denial.


Approval of the disposition of tax refunds, in an aggregate amount of $4,151.43, as recommended by the Tax Assessor's Office.


The funding required will be for those refund requests where the overpayment of taxes (voluntarily or involuntarily) was a direct result of 


property that had previously been erroneously assessed and taxes have already been collected from the taxpayer(s).


Yes Periodically through the year(s)


No Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable


No


Yes


ConsentThursday, February 26, 2015



fjones

Typewritten Text

Consent Agenda #6







Refund Requests BOC 2/26/2015
Taxpayer Year(s) Property Basis for Request Recommendation Reason Amount Per Year


Barber, Allan & Penny                                                


(05-3703-017)


2012


2013


2014


(Partial)                           


Residential
Homestead exemption was 


removed in error.
Approve Homestead exemption was removed in error.


2012 - $87.06


2013 - $87.55


2014 - $86.89


Hayne, Steven                                                


(04-08-088)


2012


2013


2014


(Partial)                           


Residential
Homestead exemption was 


removed in error.
Approve Homestead exemption was removed in error.


2012 - $87.05


2013 - $87.54


2014 - $86.89


Hayne, Steven                                                


(04-08-088)


2011


(Partial)                           
Residential


Homestead exemption was 


removed in error.
Deny


Recommending denial per beyond three year 


time period.
2011 - $84.51


Jeff Lindsey Communities, Inc.


 (6 lots)


2014


(Partial)                           
Residential Sales price not matched Approve 


Vacant residential lot sales builder/builder 


that sales price was not matched
2014 - $1,056.42


JR Homes of Alabama, LLC.


(14 lots)


2014


(Partial)                           
Residential Sales price not matched Approve 


Vacant residential lot sales builder/builder 


that sales price was not matched
2014 - $2,395.96







Refund Requests BOC 2/26/2015


Ballards Terrace, LLC 


(04-4211-010)


2014


(Partial)                           
Residential


Clerical error in processing 


deed, wrong ownership was 


transferred


Approve To correct ownership and value 2014 - $176.07


Total Number Requested 10


Total Amount Requested $4,235.94


Total Number Approved 9


Total Amount Recommended for Approval


$4,151.43





		Tax Assessor- Tax Refund Agenda Request File

		Tax Assessor- Tax Refund Backup







